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Chairman’s Statement

ETHEHMES

| have the pleasure to report that our major investment
property - Severn Villa was delivered from its possession
on 17 June 2012 by Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi ("Ms.
Wong"”) after the dismissal of her claims against the
Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, Severn Villa
Limited on 4 May 2012. Furthermore, pursuant to the
consent order of HCMP 243 and 522 of 2011, Ms. Wong
was ordered to pay the costs (the “Costs”) to all the
relevant defendants (including the Company and our
relevant group companies) on an indemnity basis, to be
taxed, if not agreed. The Directors estimate that the Costs
to be received by the Company is over HK$20 million
subject to the taxation.

With the continuing uncertainty of the economic market
of the US and Europe, the Company recorded a loss
of HK$44.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2012
as compared to a loss of HK$133.5 million for the
corresponding period ended 30 June 2011. The loss of
HK$44.9 million was mainly due to losses resulting from
(i) a revaluation deficit of HK$28.5 million (non-cash
item) on the Group’s investment properties in Panama
(ii) an increase in finance expense by HK$2.9 million to
HK$6.3 million and (iii) the disposal gain on other assets
of HK$14.8 million in the corresponding period ended 30
June 2011.

On 7 June 2012, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
RBE SR ORI BRAF entered into a binding
Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Purchaser for the
disposal (“Disposal”) of an investment property located
at Part of Level 1 & whole floor of Level 2, No. 42 Zhan
Qian Road, Zi Pian B Qu, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(having a net book value of HK$8.4 million as at 30 June
2011) at a consideration of RMB16.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$20.16 million). After the Disposal, the
Group’s remaining investment properties are expected to
generate rental income for the Group.
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RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated loss for the year ended 30
June 2012 amounted to approximately HK$44.9 million
as compared with the loss of HK$133.5 million for the
corresponding year ended 30 June 2011. Such loss
was mainly due to losses resulting from (i) a revaluation
deficit of HK$28.5 million (non-cash item) on the Group’s
investment properties in Panama (ii) an increase in finance
expense by HK$2.9 million to HK$6.3 million and (iii) the
disposal gain on other assets of HK$14.8 million in the

corresponding period ended 30 June 2011.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
provided the following security for the banking facilities
granted to a subsidiary of the Company:

(a) pledge of investment properties of the Group with
a carrying amount of HK$230,000,000 (2011:
HK$230,000,000);

(b) all monies earned by the above pledged investment
properties of the Group. During the year, rental
income of HK$2,925,000 was generated from these
investment properties (2011: HK$1,147,000);

(c) property insurance on the pledged investment
properties executed by the Group in favour of
the bank. At the end of the reporting period,
the property insurance coverage amounted to
HK$15,840,000 (2011: HK$9,350,000); and

(d) unconditional and irrevocable corporate guarantee
given by the Company in respect of all amounts
owing by the subsidiary to the bank under the
facility.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

()

Resort and Property Development

BVI Project

As disclosed in our announcement dated 19 May
2011 and our annual report for the financial year
2011, the ownership interest in Quorum Island
(BVI) Limited (“Quorum™) held by Interlsle Holdings
Limited (“Interlsle”), our joint venture partner in a
project (the “BVI Project”) located at Beef Island,
Tortola, the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") was
to be reduced from 50% to less than 20% (the
“Dilution”) as originally contemplated under a joint
venture agreement (the “Agreement”) entered
between the Group and Interlsle to develop the BVI
Project in August 2006. The BVI Project comprises
approximately 660 acres (approximately 267
hectares or 28.75 million square feet) of land.

In August 2011, Quorum received an order from
the Court of Appeal of the BVI, which confirmed
that the planning approval for the development of
the BVI Project granted by the Chief Minister and
Minister of Planning of the BVI remained valid (the
“Reinstatement of Minister’s Approval”). However
the sovereign debt crisis in Europe has had a
continuous negative influence on the economies of
the US and Europe, and the development prospects
of our BVI Project has also been adversely affected.
The Company may consider modifying its strategies
to mitigate any adverse influence caused by the
sluggish economies, and will keep Shareholders
duly informed of any such plans.
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During the financial year ended 30 June 2012,
the Company has been negotiating and finalizing
details of the Dilution with Interlsle and the position
of both parties after the Dilution, in particular,
the terms and conditions of engagement of the
development manager for the BVI Project. In any
event, the Company believes that, it is in a strong
position to take over control of the BVI Project and
will take such necessary actions in relation to this
matter to protect the interests of the Group. The
Company will keep the Shareholders updated with
the information in respect of the Dilution. Upon the
completion of the Dilution, Quorum will become a
subsidiary of the Group.

The BVI Project is envisioned to be a master-planned
resort community which will include: a five-star
luxury resort hotel with approximately 200 hotels
and condo-hotel units, destination spa, signature
restaurants and conference rooms; a first-class
marina with approximately 135 ships, including
facilities for 15 mega-yachts over 80 feet; a golf
course and up to 600 high-end residential units
including townhomes, beachfront residences,
ocean-view villas, and secluded mountain estate
homes; as well a unique artisan and retail village at
Trellis Bay.

Panama Project

The Panama Project comprises two pieces of
land: (i) a piece of land of approximately 494
hectares (approximately 1,223 acres or 53.27
million square feet) named Playa Grande in Boca
Chica, District of San Lorenzo, Province of Chiriqui
in Panama (the “Panama Land”); and (ii) a hot
spring with a land size of approximately 9 hectares
(approximately 22.3 acres or 0.97 million square
feet) in the Borough of San Felix, Province of
Chiriqui in Panama (the “Hot Spring Property”).
The Management has worked with professionals
and architects on the relevant plans for the sub-lot
region of the Panama Land for submission to the
relevant authorities of Panama.
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The Panama Project plans to feature a luxury
hotel, a marina facility and a marina village, a
18-hole signature golf course, a branded fractional
ownership club, branded ocean-view villas and
branded residential lots. After completion of the
Panama Project, 2,000 residential units in the
various branded residential lots will be offered for
sale.

The Group will replicate the business model
of the BVI Project, and intends to partner with
renowned experts in the resort development
industry to develop the Panama Project subject to
the prevailing economic climate and conditions
of the property market. Alternatively, if a suitably
attractive offer is made by potential buyers, the
Board may consider the disposal of the Panama
Land and/or the Hot Spring Property.

Property Investment and Holding

Except for the Panama Project, the Group's
investment properties contributed rental income to
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2012.

After the Disposal of the investment properties
located at the People Republic of China and
Canada, the remaining investment properties are
expected to generate rental income for the Group.

Investment Holding

In August 2011, the Group realised the majority of
its financial assets held by the Group due to the
sudden downturn of the market. The management
is always seeking for any opportunities which may
result in a satisfactory yield for the Group, and the
Company currently has no investment plans on
hand.
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OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertainties of the economies of the US and
Europe which may continuously affect our Group’s two
main projects both in BVI and Panama, the Company
may consider modifying its strategies to ensure that the
Group’s overseas resort development projects will bring
satisfactory returns to the Group in the near future. In
addition, Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond was re-appointed
as our Managing Director and it is expected that he will
effectively and efficiently handle and manage the two
main projects of the Group. His re-appointment will also
give assurance to the project partners of the Group’s
commitment in those projects. The management believes
that the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong and
Panama and the developments in the BVI will bring in
satisfactory returns to the Group in the near future.

The Group still continue to seek other appropriate
property investment opportunities or investments which
may bring satisfactory return to the Group.

PORTAL OPERATION

The Group has established a corporate website
www.applieddev.com. The website serves as an electronic
channel to enhance the relationship between the
Company and its shareholders by informing them of the
most updated corporate and investor information.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2012, the Group’s total net asset value and
borrowings amount to HK$414.5 million and HK$117.7
million respectively, representing a gearing ratio of 28.4%
as compared to 25.4% of the corresponding year. As at
30 June 2012, the Group’s current asset value including
investment properties classified as held for sale and
current liabilities excluding bank borrowing over 1 year
(based on scheduled payment date) amount to HK$66.0
million and HK$10.1 million respectively, representing a
current ratio of 6.5 times. In addition, the majority of the
Group's assets and liabilities were denominated in Hong
Kong and US dollars, and hence the exposure to foreign
exchange risk is insignificant to the Group.
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EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group does not engage in interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expenses, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2012, the Group employed a total of 9
(2011: 8) full-time employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
basis of the performance of individual employees and
are reviewed annually. The Group also provides medical
insurance coverage and a provident fund scheme to its
employees depending on the location of such employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all of
the staff and business partners for their hard work and
dedication.

By order of the Board
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2012
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, aged 63, Managing
Director, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of lllinois and a Master
in Business Administration (“MBA") degree from the
University of Chicago, United States of America. Mr.
Raymond Hung founded the Group in April 1976, and he
has been actively involved in the Group’s development
over the last 36 years. Upon his appointment as an
Executive Director, he will have overall responsibility for
the activities of the Company.

Mr. Raymond Hung first became Managing Director and
the Chairman of the Company in 1986. He resigned as the
Chairman of the Company in 2005 and from his position
as an Executive Director and the Managing Director on 6
April 2011. After his resignation as an Executive Director
and Managing Director in 2011, Mr. Raymond Hung
remained with the Group due to his substantial experience
and involvement in the Group’s overseas projects. He also
holds the directorship with all the Company’s subsidiaries.

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus, aged 30, Chairman, holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a MBA degree
both from University of Chicago. He joined the Company
in 2005. He is principally responsible for the overall
management and business of the Group.

Ms. Ng Kit Ling, aged 47, Executive Director, is a
Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom and she holds a Master Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
She joined the Group in 2005 and immediately prior to
her appointment as Executive Director, Ms. Ng was the
Financial Controller and Company Secretary. She has over
26 years of experience in finance and accounting matters
of companies listed in Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, aged 58, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a Master of Science degree in Electronics
and Computer Science from the University of California
at Berkeley, USA and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He joined
the Group in 1997. He has over 33 years experience
in investment, manufacturing, banking and real estate
development. He was previously affiliated with several
international banks, an electronics manufacturing
company, a US based investment holding company and a
HK public listed real estate development company.
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Mr. Su Ru lJia, aged 62. Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a MBA degree from International East-West
University of America CEBIBIBR R 7575 K 2) and graduated
from Nanjing Senior Army Command College® (Fd &=
WPEFIEIEEPT) and South China Normal University (3
FRMEE A Z2) in 1983 and 1989 respectively. He has been
appointed as a Committee Member of The Communist
Party of Committee of Shenzhens (FEZFITEZEE), a
Committee Member of Political of Association Shenzhen
Committees (B i &Y THEEEEZ) and a Deputy Director
of Main Branch of Economic Technology Committee® (4%
BRI ZE2IERBAE EM) since 2007, before that,
he was appointed as a Deputy Chief of Shenzhen Trade
Development Councils (RIIE S5 EBREIBK) and a
Secretary of The Communist Party of Committee of
Shenzhen Unit Work Committees (1 %I Th Z &% Y
BRI TEZEEER) in 1998 and 2001 respectively. He
has worked for the Community State of PRC for over 43
years. During the course of working for the military of
PRC from the Deputy Squad Leader lastly promoted to the
Commander of the military, he achieved three Third-class
merit reward and was praised his excellent performance
over 20 times. He has an extensive experience in the
economic and property development of PRC, especially
management in the PRC State Committee.

Mr. Lo Yun Tai, aged 66, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a B.Sc. degree in Mechanical Engineering
from National Taiwan University. He has over 42 years'
extensive experience in corporate management and
operation of his chain of private companies of which he is
the sole-proprietor. He is also familiar with the business,
operations and development of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) acquired during the time when
he was an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company from 1998 to 2009.
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Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence, aged 42, Independent Non-
executive Director, holds a MBA degree in E-Commerce
from University of Ballarat, Australia and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree in Economics from Hong
Kong Baptist University. Mr. Chan is also a member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Chan has been working as a financial consultant since
2008, before which he was a director of Zap Financial
Consultancy Ltd, providing financial consulting or
advisory service. He has over 19 years of experience in
financial consulting, corporate restructuring, mergers
and acquisitions, raising capital and financing, strategic
financial planning, especially assisting over 100 Chinese
enterprises in the obtaining of leasing finance and trade
finance through banks in Hong Kong and China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chui Man Fai, aged 43, Assistant Accounts Manager
and also the Company Secretary. He is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is a member of the Association of
International Accountants in the United Kingdom. He also
holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chui joined the
Group in 2008 and he also has over 10 years of auditing
experience.

§ literal translation
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The directors have a pleasure to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in resort and property
development; property and investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
and a jointly controlled entity of the Group are set out in
notes 41 and 17, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 39.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group did not have any purchases and suppliers
during the year and at the end of the reporting period,
respectively. During the year, the aggregate revenue
attributable to the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group were 100% and 89% of the total
revenue of the Group, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
of the Company which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company had any beneficial interest in the share capital
of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of movements during the year in the investment

properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 30 June
2012 are set out on page 132.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in share capital of
the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the
Company available for distribution to shareholders as
at 30 June 2012 amounted to HK$124,903,000 (2011:
HK$153,658,000).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing Director
(re-appointed on 15 August 2012))

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (Chairman)

Ng Kit Ling (appointed on 15 August 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:

Lun Tsan Kau

Su Ru Jia

Lo Yun Tai (re-appointed on 13 December 2011)

Chan Ming Fai, Terence (appointed on 13 December 2011)

Lam Ka Wai, Graham (resigned on 12 December 2011)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report contained in
revised Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
that Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, Ms. Ng Kit Ling, Mr. Lo
Yun Tai and Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence shall retire at the
Annual General Meeting and they will be eligible to offer
themselves for re-election. All remaining directors will
continue in office. The terms of office of the independent
non-executive directors are the periods up to their
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws.

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract in writing with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries is/was a party and in which a director of
the Company has/had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisting/subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

LITIGATIONS WITH A FORMER DIRECTOR,
MS WONG KAR GEE, MIMI

Reference is made to the Company’s annual report 2011
and the Company’s announcements dated 31 August
2011, 3 November 2011, 4 May 2012, 1 June 2012 and
11 June 2012 in relation to the litigations (“Actions”)
with Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi (“Ms. Wong") (a former
director who retired in the annual general meeting of the
Company on 14 January 2011) as follows:

High Court Action No. 1175/2010

The Company has commenced action against Ms. Wong
for the return of certain assets of the Company. Ms. Wong
had since the commencement of the action returned
some of the assets claimed. There are a few more items
remaining in Ms. Wong’s possession. The Company has
yet to take any further steps in this action.

High Court Action No. 424/2011 (transferred from
Labour Tribunal Claim No. LBTC 326/2011)

After the direction of the hearing from Labour Tribunal
to High Court proceedings in February 2011, Ms. Wong
changed her claim from the total claim for approximately
HK$3.49 million to approximately HK$1.53 million. In
August 2012, Ms. Wong further changed her claims
again to approximately HK$2.97 million from HK$1.53
million and pursuant to the Court Order of 12 September
2012, Ms. Wong had to pay all costs on her amendment
of claims to the Company, in any event. The Case
Management Conference of HCA 424/2011 was scheduled
in 2013.
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District Court Action No. DCCJ 445/2012

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Beachside
Investments Limited has commenced a legal action against
Ms. Wong for approximately of HK$402,000 in February
2012. The hearing will be scheduled soon.

The Directors are of the view that the Company and its
subsidiaries have their strong positions on the Actions
and will continue to use their best endeavors to protect
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded
in the register of members required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

BiEAR T #R55445/2012

E_ZT—ZF_8 ARA—RH2EN
B~ "]Beachside Investments Limited
B A £ &z £ R’ 4402,00008 LA ETT
B) o BREMIRASHETT o

EERA HRBEZTWFR - AR
ANEMBARENEZ Y KEEES
REBNARERD A MR 2 EEF

N2
ZS o
T

EEZROKARKR GO ES

RZEBE-—ZFRNA=+H BERF
REEZMEERD ([F 5 R BE K
11) F352{FFE 2K B B RO AraEt -
ARREZHRAARA MEAKEE
(E&RBHF LB HRIIEXVED) B
o~ HERD REFZERIRE - X
REEEBMARIMERAR (X5
Prl) @z EmARRI (T EMARAN]) A
EHRARERETEFRHNRESTRI
(MRESFR) ARG RRR R H PR
ZIEmIR

ERBARDEFRFER

Number of ordinary shares

EZERHE
Held by Approximate
Beneficial controlled % of
Name of directors owner corporation Total shareholding
22 AR
ESHA BEERA NCIEST ] E BoL
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 2,960,000 - 2,960,000 0.35%

HEHE

19



Applied Development Holdings Limited & 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2012, none of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies and which were required to be entered
into and kept under the register pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company adopted by the Company on
16 September 2002 (the “Scheme”). Particulars of the
Scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) and none of the Directors or
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right
to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2012, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the interests of person (other than Directors
and chief executives of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:

FERR

R-ZEBE-——_FR A=1+1H HRBE=F
PR (R B R BE B R AER A ) e
ZER (RRREZERZSTHRAERK
5N) - IR S R E R DI F3361K 2
RERLHENRARNFEZELMAE
HEFBWT -

Number of ordinary shares

BEBERHAE

Held by Approximate
Beneficial controlled % of
Name of shareholder owner corporation Total shareholding
M2 AR
EEnE BERBEBA NEEFF At Aotk
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 333,912,701 75,022,883 408,935,584 48.81%

(Note)

s (F3E)

Note: s

These shares were held by the following companies:

Malcolm Trading Inc.

Jaytime Overseas Ltd.

Malcolm Trading Inc. and Jaytime Overseas Ltd. are wholly owned
and controlled by Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

All the interests stated above were long positions. As
at 30 June 2012, no short position was recorded in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.
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Save as disclosed above and under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”, the Company has not been notified of any
other interest representing 5% or more in the Company’s
issued share capital and recorded in the register
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June

2012.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Company
repurchased 535,000 ordinary shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of
HK$60,000. All of the shares were subsequently cancelled.
The nominal value of the cancelled shares of HK$5,350
was credited to capital redemption reserve and the
relevant aggregate consideration of HK$60,000 was paid
out from the Company’s retained profits. Details of the
repurchases are as follows:

Total number
of the
ordinary
Month of
the repurchases

shares

B

BE AR ZiERAEE
September 2011 —Z——F 1A 515,000
October 2011 —T—%+A 20,000
535,000

22

Highest price
repurchased paid per share paid per share

B EXHIREEI  R-T——F XA
=18 ARERARERMARE
7 MG GBI E336(GE &M 2h
NANE B BEITRRARS % 3 A _EE (AT H
flfE s ©

ZEBUHITES

RARWBI BB IFRTERZE
Fob £ IRBIZA3FTE Z 15 5l KO FE R

£ ARRRRMBBILIFNITESRY
B o
BEEREEAQT L HES

REBEEZE_ZE——FA=1THILFE -
QAR E A LA B E60,00078 T E
5%§<ﬁﬁ%@53soooﬂx$ Az EiE
i o 2 EBEEEIARMD EEH DT o 7
H%}ZETE £5,3508 T E R A B ARE
B f# % - HE®KE60,0008 T/ E
KRR BN - R IEHan
™

Lowest price Aggregate

consideration

EfER EfER
B=fE RIEE HILE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TR
0.115 0.105 57
0.115 0.115 3
60



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Directors’ Report

ESERES

The purchases were made for the benefit of the
shareholders as a whole as they enhanced the net asset
value and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions during the year in related parties
transactions are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of HK$12,000 (2011: HK$Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2012.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars
CPA Limited, Certified Public Accountants, as auditor of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2012
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2012.

On 15 August 2012, the Board had the pleasure of
inviting Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond to be re-appointed
as the Managing Director of the Company. The Board
strongly believes that the re-appointment of Mr. Hung Kin
Sang, Raymond will further revive the confidence of the
shareholders of the Company and potential investors in
the Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (effective prior 1 April 2012)
and the Provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
"CG Code"”) as set out in the revised Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules (effective from 1 April 2012) throughout the
corresponding effective periods of the financial year. After
specific enquiries of each of the directors of the Company
("Directors”), the Directors confirm that they have
complied with the standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has always been committed to good
corporate governance principles and practices to safeguard
the interests of its shareholders and uphold accountability,
transparency and responsibility of the Company.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code. A narrative summary
of how the Company has applied the key corporate
governance principles as set out in the CG Code is set out
below.
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THE BOARD

()

Board Composition

Executive Directors

1. Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
(Managing Director (re-appointed on 15
August 2012 and father of Mr. Hung Kai
Mau, Marcus))

2. Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

HITEE

1. HEAESA
(E=prre
(RZZ=——F )N\ A
+HEAEEZMT) &
AT 2 )

2. HEmLLE

(Chairman and son of Mr. Hung Kin Sang, (FEREEAESE
Raymond) 2 5F)

3. Ms. Ng Kit Ling 3. RERuzt
(appointed on 15 August 2012) (RN=—ZE——F

NA+HBEEZT)

Independent Non-executive Directors B ITEE

1. Mr. Lun Tsan Kau 1. fmEREE

2. Mr SuRulia 2. BomEks

3. Mr. Lo Yun Tai 3. EEELEE

(re-appointed on 13 December 2011) (R—E—%F+—_A8
T=HEEZET)

PoR AR #EE 5T A
(R=ZT—F+_H
T=HEZME)

4. Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence 4.
(appointed on 13 December 2011)

5. Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham 5. e
(resigned on 12 December 2011) (R=—ZE—%F+—H
TZHET)
Save as stated above, there is no relationship FRLA FHEIN RESESERE Y

(including financial, business, family or other

B(BERPHLE BXEL RE
FRETERRER) BERREK -

material relevant relationship(s)), among members
of the Board.
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Responsibility

The business and affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) are under the direction of
and vested with the Board pursuant to the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board is the
ultimate decision-making body of the Group except
in respect of matters reserved for shareholders. The
Board is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Group and for
the preparation of the accounts of the Company.
The Board retains overall responsibility for all major
matters of the Group, which include approving
and monitoring all policy matters, managing
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, entering into material
transactions (especially any transactions which may
involve a conflict of interest within the Board),
providing financial information, appointing directors
of the Company and other significant financial and
operational matters. Certain authority is delegated
by the Board to the management in order to
enable the management to develop and implement
the Group’s strategic plans and operations, and
to conduct the Group’s day-to-day activities.
The Board diligently monitors the management’s
performance in that regard but responsibility for
conducting the Group’s daily operations rests with
the management.

The role of the Group’s Chairman is separated
from that of the Group’s Managing Director
and their respective responsibilities are set out
by the Board in the Code of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for day-to-day
management of the business of the Group, whilst
the Chairman provides leadership for the Board
to ensure that the Board acts diligently and in the
best interests of the Group and that meetings are
planned and conducted effectively. The Chairman
is also responsible for approving the agenda for
each Board meeting, taking into account, where
appropriate, matters proposed by the Directors. The
Chairman also actively encourages the Directors to
make full contributions and actively participate in
the Board’s affairs.
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The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs. The Company reviews the authorities
of the above committees on a regular basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Company.
The Board and the Board committees work under the well-
established corporate governance practices in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Each Director of the Company is provided, upon
reasonable request made to the Board, with means, at
the Company’s expense, to seek independent professional
advice in furtherance of his/her duties if necessary.
The Independent Non-executive Directors are high
calibre executives or professionals with relevant and/or
professional industry experience who provide their skills
and expertise to the Board. Their brief biographical details
are on pages 12 to 14 of this Annual Report. They ensure
that the Board and Company maintain high standards in
its financial and other mandatory reporting obligations
as well as provide adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Company
as a whole.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and structure

to ensure appropriate levels of expertise and independence
are attained and maintained.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of the
Directors

The Company has established a nomination
committee which comprises of a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Company
follows a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment and removal of
Directors. All Directors who are appointed to fill
casual vacancies are subject to re-election at the
first general meeting after their appointments by
the Board. At the annual general meetings of the
Company, one third of the Directors for the time-
being (or where the number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to, but not greater
than one third),
executive Directors, are subject to retirement by

including the Independent Non-

rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Certain
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years, subject to retirement by
rotation as aforesaid.

Continuous Professional Development of the
Directors

The Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge
of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings and
professional development to directors will be
arranged whenever necessary.

Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors of
the Company (the “Securities Code”) on terms no
less strict than the standard set out in Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Securities Code, a Director must,
among other things, notify the Chairman or his/
her alternate in writing of the specific purpose of a
proposed dealing in the securities of the Company
and obtain a dated written acknowledgement prior
to any such dealing. All Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Securities Code.
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The Board regularly reviews the contribution (vi) ESETHRABRESHAR
required from a Director to perform his AETHEBEUNTHESERR
responsibilities to the Company to assess REMITERE - £REHHE - &
whether the Director is spending sufficient EFEHEBREZ RN
time performing them. The attendance record K
of the Directors at the regular meetings of
the Board during the reporting period is as
follows:
No. of meetings
attended/held
Name s HESRAY A8
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus HET LA 16/16
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau WERLE 16/16
Mr. Su Ru Jia ForiErE 12/16
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EBTEE
(re-appointed on 13 December 2011) (RZB——F+-A+=A5EZT) 717
Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence PRAFE S &
(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R=ZBE——F+-_A+=HEZT) 77
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham (“Mr. Lam") MRBFEE ([MEE])
(resigned on 12 December 2011) (R=—Z——F+-/F+-HEMT) 8/8

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Board was

responsible for and performed the following corporate

governance duties:

(a)

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring code of
conduct and compliance manuals applicable to
employees and Directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the

Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established on 20 April 2005 and includes a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee comprises two Executive Directors, Mr. Hung
Kin Sang, Raymond (re-appointed on 15 August 2012) and
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus and four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Su Ru Jia (appointed
on 13 December 2011), Mr. Lo Yun Tai (appointed
on 13 December 2011) after the resignation of one
Independent Non-executive Director, Mr. Lam (“Mr. Lam")
of 12 December 2011 and Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence
(appointed on 13 December 2011).

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist
the Board of the Company in determining the policy and
structure for the remuneration of executive Directors,
evaluating the performance of executive Directors,
reviewing incentive schemes and Directors’ service
contracts and fixing the remuneration packages for all
Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee has been made available
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the policy and structure for the
remuneration of the Group and made recommendation to
the Board. The attendance record of the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee during the reporting period for
each of the committee members is as set out below:

yMESES

R-ZTEERFEMAZ+H - KATRY
YMEZEE S  KERKZHABIIENIT
EE - FNEESKNEHRMBAITES
rEEEE (RZZE——F\A+HHB
BEZT) RAEREER (BB
VIBITEE MEEARZ-_T——F
T AT HBEER) WRBILIENTT
BEEDRAMERLE (FWEESE
&)~ BgERE (RZE—F 1=
AT=REZE) EEHFELEE (K=
T——F+-_A+=BEZT) KR
BhEE (RZE—F+ZA+=H%E
ZE) -

FHEZEENENERIAARESTS
FEE MMITE S H N BCERM&EE - 71
ERTEFZER BRI CE
FRBEL  REBEFNOMaREE
AEBHMEFS - 2EFHFMZ B SRR
EFHRABRNARE 2 A8 -

RBE-_T-—_FA=1THLFE"
HNE 8 &0 FH A B R0 BBUR &
R MEFSTRIEZ EREH
A BRREBEREBZHFE SRR
FIENT

No. of meetings
attended/held

Name HE HESRAE A
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus AR A 5/5
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mEREE 5/5
Mr. Su Ru Jia BOLESE

(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R=—TB——F+ A +=BEEF) 172
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EETEA

(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R—ZE——F+-A+=HEXE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence PR B 5 A

(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R=—ZE—F+-_A+=HEZE) 2/2
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRE &

(resigned on 12 December 2011) (R=ZZE—F+_A+-HEMT) 1/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 15 August 2012 and includes a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee comprises one Executive Director, Mr.
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, Mr. Lo Yun
Tai (Chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr.
Chan Ming Fai, Terence. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on
proposed changes to the Board and senior management
of the Company to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy after its reviews of the structure, size and
composition of the Board and senior management from
time to time.

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to assist
the Board of the Company in identification of suitable
individuals qualified to become board members and
senior management, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and senior management and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board and senior management to complement the
Company's corporate strategy. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee has been made available on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website.

Prior to the establishment of the Nomination Committee,
the Board as a whole was responsible for the functions of
the Nomination Committee, through its meetings held to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and senior management from time to time.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Su Ru Jia, Mr. Lo Yun Tai
(appointed on 13 December 2011) and Mr. Chan Ming
Fai, Terence (appointed on 13 December 2011) after the
resignation of an Independent Non-executive Director, Mr.
Lam on 12 December 2011. All of them have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise in accordance with the
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Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing and assessing senior management and external
auditor of the Company, the internal control system and
external auditing process and findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, Listing
Rules and statutory compliance. The members of the
Audit Committee also meet to discuss matters relating to
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting (including the interim financial report of the
Group for the first six months of each financial year).

The main duties of the Audit Committee include making
proposals and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditor and its terms
of engagement and termination as well as monitoring the
independence and effectiveness of the external auditor
and recommending appropriate actions if required.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
of the Company in considering how the Board should
apply financial reporting and internal control principles
and to maintain an appropriate relationship with the
Company’s auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee has been made available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the Audit
Committee, through its meetings with the external
auditor, mainly worked on the review and discussion of
(i) the financial reporting (including the interim report
for the first six months ended 31 December 2011); (ii)
auditing; (iii) internal control and (iv) risk management of
the Group. The attendance record of the meetings of the
Audit Committee during the reporting period for each of
the committee members is as set out below:
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No. of meetings
attended/held

Name HH HESHRAE A
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau MBI E 4/4
Mr. Su Ru Jia e 3/4
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EEELE

(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R=—TB——F+-B+=0EZF) 11
Mr. Chan Ming Fai, Terence BoR BF b 5 A

(appointed on 13 December 2011) (R=—EB——F+=-F+=AEZEF) 171
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRBSEE

(resigned on 12 December 2011) (R=—ZE—F+-A+-HET) 172
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2012, payments made
to Mazars CPA Limited, the external auditor of the
Company, for providing audit and non-audit services were
approximately HK$500,000 and HK$20,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As the Board believes that a well-designed system of
internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to ensure reliability of financial reporting as
well as compliance with the relevant rules and regulations,
a system of internal control has been set up, with the
intention of preventing material misstatements and losses
and, to manage where possible, eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems to achieve the Group's objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
internal control, financial control and risk management
system. The Board also monitors their effectiveness from
time to time, and reviews the scope and frequency of
audit reviews according to risk assessment. Special reviews
may also be conducted on areas of concern identified by
management or the Audit Committee from time to time.

During the reporting year, the Board through the Audit
Committee, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group, including the functions of
financial, operation, compliance and risk management.
The review showed that the internal control system
operated, on the whole, satisfactorily. The Board, also
through the Audit Committee, where necessary, initiated
necessary improvements and reinforcements to the
internal control system.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting
are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company’s
Bye-laws has been made available on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company’s website. Amendments
to the Listing Rules which came into force on 1 January
2009 have made it mandatory for all voting at meetings
of shareholders of the Company to be taken by way of
poll. Effective 1 January 2012, the Listing Rules have
been amended to allow voting by poll on procedural
and administrative matters to be dispensed with by the
chairman of the meeting. The Company has taken steps
to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting
by poll and arrangements have been made for the voting
of each of the resolutions being put to the meetings to be
dealt with by means of poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The purposes
of convening the meeting must be stated in the relevant
requisition, signed by all the shareholders concerned in
one or more documents in like form and deposited at the
Company’s head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

At general meetings the Board and the respective
committee members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee are responsible for answering
questions raised by the shareholders.

In order to provide detailed and up-to-date information
to our shareholders, the Company has a range of
communication channels to ensure its shareholders are
kept well-informed. These comprise communication by
way of general meetings, annual reports, public notices,
announcements and circulars.

34

REREFNRREEREF

BORBEF RN ERAE EERFRER
BREFRRZIEACHNRARRMAMEA -

(BRI EMARA - BREMAARRZK
RREHARERAR _ETNF—
A—BEER -R-FT——F—A—H
o DIERIZ EMRRAFNERER
AAISRERAVIE I MR ANFRIRIE P M
TTHEERER - NARE SR i A
%ﬁéﬁﬁ&mﬁi%R&QM@ﬁi
mﬁWMTﬁ RENTT AR IR R H AR

BN EG R EK

RBEARB QAR FES8F - IR
FAENFFIRERZBETDRT D Z
—HBREANRRBERERE  £AR
AINRRA S R RESEE G

NMELHERFRESTSHAARAZAR
WE - HE— ﬂ%%k%ﬁA EE
ARNIAEEERERNEB 2R

5 BRGHEMBEN - LARL  £F
BEA - AERRREEN —EZE
D & S == 0F 7= W 3 9 S NN O 8
SRENEENEB 2 ZEMH

ERRERAEE - BEFEk %%?E
FMESeHEKE &
%‘EFH:'JEI‘]FDEJ»EQ °

RABREREHARARE 2 FABR K
R AR $“ﬂEF%%ELﬁI
B UBRERADEEIBER S
BEIH A¢@%M$H¢K§‘¢

HZHEBE  RNENRBXK



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRESE

The Company seeks to enhance communications and
positive relationships with investors by maintaining
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them updated about the business, operations
and development of the Group, and by replying to any
enquiries from investors appropriately. Investors are
welcome to make enquiries to the Company at its office
in Hong Kong or directly visit the Company’s website
(www.applieddev.com) for any updated corporate and
financial information.

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders’ meetings provide a principal forum for
dialogue between shareholders and the Company. The
Board encourages shareholders to attend and welcomes
their participation. For the annual general meeting of the
Company, notice of the meeting and the related circular
are dispatched to the shareholders of the Company at
least 20 business days before the meeting. Separate
resolutions for each substantial issue, including the
election of Directors, is proposed at the annual general
meeting and details of the poll voting procedures and
rights of shareholders to demand a poll are included
in the related circular. Poll results in respect of each
resolution proposed at the annual general meeting will be
published by way of an announcement after the close of
the meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Board’s knowledge of the public float is based on
information publicly available to the Company. As at the
date of this report, over 25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company was held by the public.

THE BOARD'’S STATEMENT

The Company believes that good corporate governance
reflects a high quality of management and operations
of the Group’s operations and business. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and
ensure effective allocation of resources which in turn, will
protect the interests of the shareholders. The management
recognises the importance of good corporate governance
practices and will use its best endeavours to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.
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MBEMAZARS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
APPLIED DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 39 to 130, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30th June, 2012,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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BYZEEBREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group as at 30th June, 2012, and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25th September, 2012

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604

38

=R

HPIRE  REHREUBHRRORES
BYBHREENEEMAFIHRER &
SER-_ZT—_FXA=THNEHKNK
Ak BEEBHEZALIFENEER
BEang  YERBEBRRED 2K
BRTEHESRE -

EESMEEMERLDA
HEDIED
B —T——_—FNA=-+HA

138
HEEEE  P04604



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EEWER

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

Turnover

Other revenue

Other income

Other operating expenses

Net decrease in fair values
of investment properties

Administrative expenses

Interest income (Impairment loss)
on promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity

Finance costs

Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

Loss before tax
Taxation

Loss for the year, attributable
to equity holders of the Company
Other comprehensive income

Exchange difference realised on disposal

of subsidiaries

Exchange difference arising on translation

of foreign operations
Surplus on properties revaluation
Release of (Charge of) deferred tax
arising from revaluation surplus

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for
the year, attributable to equity
holders of the Company

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

ExH

R ks

HA A

R BERL

BEMELTE
R

SECl

M- TIRERHAT
335 Sa ik
WA (R
AR A

e ERARSIAT
SEE

BRBE AT B
HE

FEARKE  EERAT
RAEZEA
Hib2mEiz
HEHBA TSR
B2
REEINEBES
CEXEEB
HIEARZNEEHEYS
B RBEE Y BT
BB B ()

FEHMZERE
BRBL&

EEZHBRAE
EBEFDTAREFEA

SRER
A

39

2012 2011
—F-=F e ——
Note HK$'000 HK$" 000
et TR TR
5 3,296 4,649
5 382 1,036
6 883 15,365
9 (4,277) (6,628)
14 (20,111) (40,905)
(23,909) (27,776)
22 10,931 (50,143)
8 (6,310) (3,400)
17 - (27,676)
(39,115) (135,478)
10 (5,768) 1,993
11 (44,883) (133,485)
- 24
- 12
- 1,444
31 119 (119)
119 1,361
(44,764) (132,124)

13

(5.36) HK cents (15.91) HK cents
AL B

(5.36) HK cents (15.91) HK cents
B X1l




Applied Development Holdings Limited & 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Other assets
Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— current portion

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Other payables

Secured bank borrowings
Obligation under a finance lease

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

e AR R

At 30th June, 2012 —E——F,xA=+H

FRBEE
BEME
ME - BE k&R
A& Mg — ) L [m) #22 il
NSRS
HipEE
A — R H R
NCIPR: o
EREERE
— FRBED
A ERE

rBEE
AT EBEH A
Bz MBAE

B 5 K H b UK IR

JRE s — R HE R P22 )
R ZFHIA
BN HEEFA
— mEE

RTEFMRS

DRRFHENEE

REAE
RITEX
H b FE A 5KIB
BRIFRITEE
AR AR IE

RBREFE
REERRBAE

40

Note
Mo

14

15

16

17

18
19

20
21

23

18
24

26

28

25

2012 2011
—g--F —ZT—F
HK$"000 HK$°000
TR FET
336,900 377,600
5,134 1,815
132,388 121,457
1,045 1,045
1,551 1,591
220 220
477,238 503,728
1,033 29,309
23,526 3,685
16,763 16,388
40 40
7,824 28,516
49,186 77,938
16,778 -
65,964 77,938
- 204

3,644 5,188
75,758 79,156
1,124 -
80,526 84,548
1,928 -
82,454 84,548
(16,490) (6.610)
460,748 497,118
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e AR R

At 30th June, 2012 —E——F€,~A=+H

Capital and reserves BEXK G

Share capital [N

Share premium and reserves BHhEEREES
Total equity ERERE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible notes AHRRER
Obligation under a finance lease B T A9
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBAEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 39 to 130
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25th September, 2012 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman
E

1

Note
Mo

29

39

28
31

2012 2011
—B--F =—FT—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEr THT
8,378 8,383
406,155 450,974
414,533 459,357
39,099 37,510
1,757 -
5,359 251
46,215 37,761
460,748 497,118

FIVEEFI30AMF LA P HRK

BER=

=z

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond

Managing Director

EFEEE

——FNANA-THERESFES
BUE NIRRT W H I ESERRR
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i A 3 g
I A = *Eﬁﬁﬁgj.]%
Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DAREREARL
Share  Convertible ~ Investment Capital
Share Share  options notes ~ revaluation Other  redemption Capital Distributable  Translation  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  rfeserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total
B4
Bx  ROEE BRERE FEEE REEMEE  AMBE SARERE  GARE TANBE  AERE  REE ]
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn T Tin TR TR ThRL Tin Tin TR ThR TR Tin
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note3)  (Noted)  (Note) (Note 6) (Note 7) (Note 8)  (Note9)
(est)  (wtn) (mbs) (mde) (mis)  (me) (W) (BEs)  (WR9)
At 1st July, 2010 AZE-354A-A 8,389 5 5332 - (400) 8,51 11,920 204,610 93,961 61 254,876 587,745
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - - - - - (133485 (133.48Y)
Other comprehensive income HH2EUA
Realised on disposal of subsidiaries  HERBATEER - - - - - - - - - u - 2
Exchange difference arising on BEENEHL
translation of foreign operations EfzE - - - - - - - - - 12 - 12
Surplus on property revaluation NEEHI RS - - - - - 1,444 - - - - - 1444
Deferred tax arising from BRERBELY
revaluation surplus FERE - - - - - (119 - - - - - (119
Total other comprehensive income £t 2ENALE - - - - - 1325 - - - 3% - 1361
Total comprehensive income REERAUNEE
for the year - - - - - 1325 - - - 3% (133485 (132,124)
Transfer to retained profits on
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - 8,551) - - (93,961) - 102512 -
Transfer to retained profits on
cancellation / forfeiture of
share options - - (5332) - - - - B - - 5,332 -
Repurchase of own shares EERR 6) - - - - - 6 - - - (110) (110)
Issue of convertible notes ETRREE - - - 3846 - - - - - . - 3,846
6) - (5332) 3846 - (8,551) 6 - (93,961) - 107,734 3,736
At 30th June, 2011 RZF——ExAZTR 8,383 5 - 3846 (400) 1325 11,926 204,610 - 97 229,125 459,357
At st July, 2011 R=F-—%tA-A 8,383 45 - 3,846 400) 1325 11,926 204,610 - 97 229,125 459,357
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - - - (44883) (44883
Other comprehensive income Et2ERA
Release of deferred tax on REENER
disposal of property EtEz 8R - - - - - 19 - - - - - 19
Total other comprehensive income 2 ERAEE - - - - - 119 - - - - - 119
Total comprehensive income REERRANALE
for the year - - - - - 19 - - - - (44883)  (44764)
Transfer to retained profits on HEnzRELE
disposal of property el - - - - - (1,444) - - - - 1,444 -
Repurchase of own shares Bk () - - - - - 5 - - - (60) (60)
(5 - - - - (1,444) 5 - - - 1,384 (60)
At 30th June, 2012 R-E-ZERA=1R 8,378 445 - 3,846 (400) - 11,931 204,610 - 97 185,626 414,533

42
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mEEREER
S EAAStELERE

Year ended 30th June, 2012 i E ==

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
or consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares
over their par value. The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 46(2) of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Share options reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted under the Company’'s share option
scheme which are yet to be exercised. The amount will
either be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire, be
cancelled or forfeited.

Convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component (conversion rights) of the convertible notes
issued.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of
available-for-sale investments that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income, net of the amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are
disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

Other reserve represents the fair value adjustment at
the date of transfer of property, plant and equipment to
investment properties. Following the disposal of certain
investment properties previously transferred from property,
plant and equipment, the revaluation surplus attributable
to these investment properties included in the other
reserve was transferred to retained profits during the year
ended 30th June, 2012.

Capital redemption reserve has been set up and is dealt
with on repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s
own shares. The application of the capital redemption
reserve is governed by Section 42A of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Capital reserve represents contributed surplus arising
from the cancellation of share premium account of the
Company pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
Company on 22nd February, 1999 and waivers of loans
from minority shareholders of subsidiaries of the Company
during the years ended 30th June, 2006 and 2008.

Distributable reserve arose from the cancellation of share
capital and share premium account of a subsidiary of the
Company, Applied Electronics Limited (“AEL"), pursuant
to a scheme of arrangement which became effective
on 10th January, 1989. Following the disposal of AEL in
March 2011, the distributable reserve was transferred to
retained profits during the year ended 30th June, 2011.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange

differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meaRERER

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Dividend income
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of other assets
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss (gain) on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loss on disposal of investment
properties
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
(Interest income) Impairment loss
on promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Interest income
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Net decrease in fair values of
investment properties
Net decrease in fair values of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Release of prepaid lease payments
Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity
Write-off of property,
plant and equipment

Operating cash flows before
changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Other payables
Amount due from / to a related party

Cash used in operating activities
Overseas tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Note
B &

BEED

PRELAIE 1R

FAEIER
WE - BER
REBZIE
BB A
BEMKA
HEH B E 2 W
HENE - BER
Rl W
HERRFEZTA
BaZMBEE
Z BB (M)
HEREMEZBR

5 R EMEWTIAZ
BIEEE
fEU — e R
NRAIMEN BB Z
(FBWA) BIEEE
FEWA
HEMBARZER
KREMELFE
B RE
BAFER A
BaMBEE
2R FEFRD
RERIRNHERR
i~ AR
EHARMEE
WmE - BER
R EH

EEESEDA 2
REFER

LEELEY:

B 5 R E M YRR

H it FE I 5R0R

ek reft

— Al 7 2 R
RETHRAZRAS
BIMHIAS

RETHMAZAERE
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2012 2011
. —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(39,115) (135,478)
772 1,150
(95) (12)
6,310 3,400
- (14,843)
(786) -
3,499 (374)
225 -
553 -
(10,931) 50,143
(382) (1,036)

- 6,628
20,111 40,905
872 1,341
40 41

- 27,676

- 3
(18,927) (20,456)
(19,076) 132
(1,544) 1,841
78 (3,735)
(39,469) (22,218)
(541) (26)
(40,010) (22,244)
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mEaRERER

Year ended 30th June, 2012 &E T ——FNA=1+HILFE

2012 2011
. —F—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(i BT FEL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Additions to investment properties S R (1,789) (1,805)
Advance to a jointly controlled entity ERT—RERZESA (375) (5)
Deposits received on disposal of m%&iﬁm%aqy&i
investment properties 1,928 -
Dividend received B E 95 12
Interest received YRS 382 1,036
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEME - BER
plant and equipment Fl s = 961 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAHEZEA
at fair value through profit or loss B MBEE 2 WE 33,662 8,732
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR W -
net of direct costs HBEERA 38 - 15,640
Proceeds from disposal of other assets HE BB E 2 e - 15,344
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYZ 2 M=
investment properties 3,979 -
Purchase of financial assets at fair BARRDFEE A
value through profit or loss BaWBEE (9,757) (39,008)
Purchase of property, BAME - BE KB
plant and equipment (837) (350)
Net cash from (used in) RETEFE
investing activities (i) 2BeFE 28,249 (404)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES EEE
Finance charges paid in respect AT EAIE
of obligation under a finance lease ENRMEER (53) (1)
Interest on convertible notes ABRREE 2B (3.341) (1,857)
Interest on bank borrowings BERIRITEFHF S (1.327) (722)
Repayment of advances from directors, net  (EEEN FEEFE - (11,436)
New bank borrowings raised IZIRITER - 79,156
Issue of convertible notes, BITARRER
net of issue costs HIBREATR A - 40,536
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER (3,398) (57,000)
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease {2 % &l &M 4&4E (548) 21)
Repurchase of own shares Bl (60) (110)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities & EE (Fif)
FBzEL3E (8,727) 48,545
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BeRBEEEEZ
cash equivalents T CR2) & (20,488) 25,897
Cash and cash equivalents FNBRERASEEY
at beginning of the year 28,312 2,403
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INESTE R H) v & = 12
Cash and cash equivalents at ERBERAELEEY
end of the year 7,824 28,312
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBL2ZEY
cash equivalents EER 2 DT
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS 7,824 28,516
Bank overdrafts RITEX = (204)
7,824 28,312
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e BTSRRI

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is
the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The Group is principally engaged in
resort and property development, and property and
investment holding. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company and a jointly controlled
entity of the Group are set out in notes 41 and
17 to these consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2011 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of certain new /
revised HKFRSs effective from the current year
that are relevant to the Group. A summary of the
principal accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

Adoption of new / revised HKFRSs

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 was revised to include a new definition
of related party and to provide a partial exemption
from the disclosure requirements in relation
to related party transactions and outstanding
balances, including commitments, with:

(a) a government that has control, joint control
or significant influence over the reporting
entity; and

(b) another entity that is a related party because
the same government has control, joint
control or significant influence over both the
reporting entity and the other entity.

The Group adopted the new definition in its
accounting policies but such adoption does not
have an effect on the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — Improvements to

HKFRSs 2010

The improvements comprise a number of
improvements to HKFRSs including the following
that are considered to be relevant to the Group:
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Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instrument
Disclosures: Clarification of disclosures

The amendments clarify the required level of
disclosures about credit risk and collateral held and
provide relief from disclosures previously required
for renegotiated loans.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of
Financial Statements: Clarification of statement of
changes in equity

The amendments clarify that the reconciliation of
each component of other comprehensive income
may be presented either in the statement of
changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group has decided to continue
presenting the reconciliation on the face of the
statement of changes in equity.

The adoption of the improvements does not have a
significant impact to the Group.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with the principles
applicable to a going concern basis. The
applicability of these principles is dependent upon
the Group’'s future profitable operation and the
bank’s continuing finance in the future in view of
the excess of current liabilities over current assets.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies
below.
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30th June each year. The financial
statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position, separately from
equity holders of the Company. The non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets
in the event of liquidation, is measured initially
either at fair value or at the present ownership
instrument’s proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the equity holders of the Company and the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the
Company.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and / or building
that are held by owner or lessee under finance
lease to earn rental income and / or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for
a currently undetermined future use, properties
that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment properties and properties that
are held under operating lease, which satisfy the
definition of investment property and are carried at
fair value.
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Investment properties are stated at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value is recognised in profit
and loss. The fair value of investment property is
based on a valuation by an independent valuer who
holds a recognised professional qualification and
has recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit and loss during the year in which they are
incurred.

Properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses
incurred during the development period.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
less accumulated impairment losses of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, over their estimated
useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings term of the leases or

25 years, whichever
is shorter
Leasehold improvements  20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 25%
equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 33':%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, whereas shorter, the terms of
the relevant leases.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.
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Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire fixed-term interests in lessee-occupied land.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis
to profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets are antiques held for long-term
investment purposes and are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which
venturers have joint control and none of the
venturers has unilateral control over the economic
activity of the entity are referred to as a jointly
controlled entity.

The Group’s investment in a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The consolidated statement of
comprehensive income includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of the jointly
controlled entity for the year. The consolidated
statement of financial position includes the Group's
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entity and also goodwill.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to
the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case, the full amount of losses is recognised.
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Investment properties that are classified as held for
sale are measured at their fair values at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one
of the three categories, which are financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and
loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are (i) acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; (ii) part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives
that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or
(i) they are part of a group of financial assets and
/ or financial liabilities that are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives
that would need to be separately recorded.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables, including promissory note
receivable, are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised. Once a financial asset or a group of
similar financial assets has been written down as
a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
thereafter recognised using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is transferred to profit or loss.
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When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any previously recognised impairment
loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in fair value of available-for-sale equity
instrument after recognition of impairment loss is
recognised in equity. Reversal of impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds, net of direct issue costs.
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Derecognition

Financial asset are derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii)
when the Group transfers the financial asset and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to assess whether there is any indication that
its property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments, investments in antiques, subsidiaries
and a jointly controlled entity have suffered an
impairment loss or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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If the recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that
exhibits characteristics of a liability is recognised as
a liability in the statement of financial position, net
of issue costs.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value
of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for a similar note that does not have
a conversion option; and this amount is carried
as a liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included
in the convertible note reserve within shareholders’
equity, net of issue costs. The value of the
conversion option carried in equity is not changed
in subsequent years. When the conversion option
is exercised, the balance of the convertible note
reserve is transferred to share premium account or
other appropriate reserve. When the conversion
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance remained in the convertible note reserve
is transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.
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Issue costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible notes
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are
first recognised. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, with reference to fair value of
consideration received or receivable, and on the
following bases:

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income from financial assets is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as finance lease obligations. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to profit or loss unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification. Leasehold
land which title is not expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term is classified
as an operating lease unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease.

61

EE LA E

BEMNBAEZEENHERS
BARFEHFEBEONRK2E
EEERSAREZEE - HE
ARBERERHRGE P HIR K
F 5] EE A ERE - AR
B OIS HE R R
ERD  KMmEZFABEREMNE
BUABEERFE - MKERE
BERNIEERHE - BRIFXERT
EERBRAEREE  RILE
AT ZERAREAEE &
ERABREETERNE

REMHRNEER BRI
BAVRRMABBEONXE - BH
MELZAIRHRER 2 MmE
MeXHhREHAEREN
e

HE L R 1ET

T REFHE 2 L RETE
HEETHESBKANRZE
B HEENSHEEEAERN
HEHRTER T EANER =&
HE - RIFESOEA RS DB
THREFMEBEH - ELER
T BEEN-REEREHED
BR3P o



Applied Development Holdings Limited & 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BTSRRI

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(“foreign currencies”) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation on non-monetary items in respect of
which gain and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme is charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set
out in note 42 to these consolidated financial
statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described above.
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When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction and production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if
the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.

The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and a jointly
controlled entity, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, net of bank overdrafts.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of the
parent of the Group.
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An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group's chief operating decision maker for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made various estimates
and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated. The key source of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements
made in applying accounting policies that result
in significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year or significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements are discussed below:

() Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
the relevant assets of similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of actual usage and
maintenance, which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or
loss.
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Impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The management determines whether the
Group’s property, plant and equipment are
impaired where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment, which is equal to the
higher of net selling price or the value in
use. Estimating the value in use requires
the management to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the
property, plant and equipment and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will charge to profit
or loss.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The management determines the provision
for impairment of the Group’s loans
and receivables based on the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer and other debtors
If the
financial conditions of the Group’s customers

and the current market condition.
and other debtors were to deteriorate,

resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required.
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Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company and the Group assess annually
if their investments in subsidiaries and
a jointly controlled entity have suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 and follow the guidance of HKAS 39
in determining whether promissory note
receivable and / or amounts due from
those entities are impaired. Details of
the approach are stated in the respective
accounting policies. The assessment requires
an estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and
position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Properties held for capital appreciation

The Group’s investment properties
under development in Panama with a
carrying value of HK$106,900,000 (2077:
HK$133,600,000) are held for capital
appreciation after development but not
for own use. Accordingly, the properties
under development in Panama have been
accounted for as investment properties
instead of property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on fair value gain of
investment properties held in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the
accumulated fair value gain of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong
amounted to HK$171,000,000 (2017:
HK$171,000,000). The Group's plan is
to sell the properties in the market. With
capital gain being exempted from Hong
Kong Profits Tax, management considers no
deferred tax liability shall be recognised in
respect of the temporary differences arising
from the accumulated fair value gain.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

Future changes in HKFRSs BBV BRELED ZARREE
REEMBmKx 2ERR - &
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the BestiiAe e BHE THs]
following new / revised HKFRSs that are relevant to EIER] 2 BB GHRELER  H
RAFEEmARER - M AKE IR
I AR ATER AR ©

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated

the Group and are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to Deferred Tax: Recovery of EE e VEHE I
HKAS 12 Underlying Assets ' 1255 (1B5T) W lbliEEG £
Amendments to Presentation of Items of EEestER| AmrEiK e
HKAS 1 (Revised) Other Comprehensive F15 (&HBRT)  EHHBISH?
Income 2 (1&31)
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 3 FAEE TR 1E S 78I
££195%
—T——%F)
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting BB HREER] wE—
HKFRS 7 Financial Assets E75% (BET) BIEEEM
and Financial Liabilities * g 3= =y:v]
G IE#E°
Mandatory Effective Date BT
of HKFRS 9 and ERFIHZ
Transition Disclosures ° & bB 7T HA
et
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial FaesHER BB IRES
Statements? FE275%%
—ET——%F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates BEgFHER| REED TR
and Joint Ventures 3 285 BEPEZ
—ET——%F) RE?
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial EBMIEMEED 472 HFHFE3
Statements 3 F105%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 3 EBVIEWMEER HAEZHE
E115%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests EBYTEMEER FHERAM
in Other Entities 3 $125% B #ED
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 3 EFEUIEMELED] N FEHE?
2135%

Amendments to

Consolidated Financial

BEUBMEER AEIHFEHEEX

HKFRS 10, Statements, Joint E105% (BFT) - HALHR

HKFRS 11 and Arrangements and F115E (BF]) k. BEREM

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests F125% (187]) B #wm
in Other Entities: WBEES

Transition Guidance 3
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 H & —

Amendments to
HKFRS 1

First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards °

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities #

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements

Projects 2009 - 2011 Cycle 3

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments °

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2015

The directors are in the process of assessing the
possible impact on the future adoption of these
new / revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position
to reasonably estimate their impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE T —

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale
investments, promissory note receivable and
amount due from a jointly controlled entity,
bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables, other payables, secured bank
borrowings, convertible notes, obligations
under finance leases and bank overdrafts.
Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily on the promissory note
receivable from a jointly controlled entity
and the Group’s operation in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Panama. The
currency giving rise to this risk is United
States dollar (“US$"). The Group does not
hedge its foreign currency risks because the
rate of exchange between HK$ and US$
is stable under current market condition
and the existing currency exchange policies
adopted by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

Interest rate risk

The Group’'s exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily
to the Group’s secured bank borrowings
with floating interest rates as at the end of
the reporting period. The interest rates and
terms of repayment have been disclosed
in note 27 to these consolidated financial
statements. The Group currently does not
have a policy to hedge against the interest
rate risk as management does not expect
any significant interest rate risk as at the
end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to
secure bank borrowings that would have a
significant effect to profit or loss. A change
of 100 basis points was applied to the yield
curves at the respective end of the reporting
period.

At the end of the reporting period, if
interest rates had been 100 basis points
higher / lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s net loss would
increase / decrease by approximately
HK$758,000 (2011: HK$792,000), but there
would be no impact on the other equity
reserves.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
secured bank borrowings in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase
or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the
next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
year 2011.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE T —

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
arising from trading of listed securities
classified as held-for-trading investments
and available-for-sales investments in the
consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group does not have significant exposure
to fluctuation of the quoted market price
of the listed securities as the impact for the
change in equity price is insignificant.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors
will default on their obligations to repay the
amounts due to the Group, resulting in a
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
mainly attributable to the promissory note
receivable, amounts due from related parties
and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity.

The management closely monitors the
financial position of the jointly controlled
entity and is ready to take appropriate
actions to safeguard the interest of the
Group as and when necessary. Therefore,
the Group's exposure to credit risk is to a
large extent limited. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of the promissory note receivable,
amounts due from related parties and
amount due from a jointly controlled entity
as reported in the Group’s statement of
financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk where 63% (20711: 100%) of
the amounts due from related parties is
originated from a related party of the Group.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

At the end of the reporting period, the
Company had a concentration of credit risk
as 87% (2011: 87%) and 100% (2011:
100%) of the total amounts due from
subsidiaries were due from the largest
subsidiary and the top five subsidiaries
respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through banking facilities available.
The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance
At the end of the
reporting period, there were no unutilised

with loan covenants.

banking facilities available to the Group
(2011: HK$Nil).

The maturity profile of the financial liabilities
of the Group and the Company at the end

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REEBR - AREIHEST
TEFEERRMNERE
mL87%(_7—5**ﬁ—"—-
87%) K100% (—&F——
F :100%) 7 RIIHE R E
W — M B A7) & A
FEMBAR] -

REERER

AEBERREREFE
EDMEHE S RRTEE
FRETEFE - EHREH
R AEERBEMERE
ERZRTRERE (=
T——2F  fE) -

EHREHR - NEEH
BRERBEAOMITHAR

of the reporting period based on contractual IR I8 B W 2 B &0
undiscounted payments is summarised x=WOE :
below:
Group =L |
2012 2011
—E——F T4
On On
demand or demand or
less than less than
1 year 1-5 years 1 year 1-5 years
RERS B EsRkk
R—FR —ZEHF R—FR —EhF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHExT FHET FAT
Bank overdrafts RITEX = - 204 _
Other payables H A fE AT FRIE 3,644 - 5,188 -
Obligation under a  RYETHAIAEIE
finance lease 1,201 1,802 - -
Secured bank SRR ITEE
borrowings 88,919 - 93,114 -
93,764 1,802 98,506 -
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—FERA=THILEE

Company NG
2012 2011
—E—= —E——%F
On On
demand or demand or
less than less than
1 year 1-5 years 1 year 1-5 years
RERD RERE
R—FR —ZhRF R—F A —ZEARF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FAT FAET
Bank overdrafts RITEX - - 204 _
Other payables H A e 5RI8 523 - 2,033 -
Amount due to JET— T
a subsidiary Pt B 2 )RR 228,503 - 205,143 -
229,026 - 207,380 -
The amounts repayable under a loan BEERwZ (HEHLT
agreement that includes a clause that BEABEGEGEDER
gives the lender the unconditional right EHE R IGR) - EE
to call the loan at any time are classified ENEEIBRRIIREX
under the “on demand” bracket. In this Bl —®eptitims - &
regard, interest-bearing bank borrowings SEZRITITIGTER
of HK$75,758,000 (2011: HK$79,156,000) R ESREN - FHRRTT
as at the end of the reporting period have f&3K75,758,000/8 7T (=&
been so classified even though the directors — —4F 1 79,156,000/ )
do not expect that the bank would exercise BERHmEPRIDE AL D
its rights to demand repayment and thus ¥ WLIEFTERITER
these borrowings, which include payment of E ':F BREIMME - Bz
interest, would be repaid according to the CRE R EFTIIAT
following schedule as set out in the loan HTrF'EﬁEETEA = -
agreements:
Within Over
1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
R—FR —SHT BBRE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT FHT FAT
At 30th June, 2012 R=F——F
NA=1+H 4,743 18,971 65,205 88,919
At 30th June, 2011 RZT——%F
~A=+H 4,700 18,798 69,616 93,114
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(b)

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

Categories and fair value of financial
instruments

Fair value disclosures

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured
at fair value at 30th June, 2012 and 2011
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments;

o Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data;

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values

measured using valuation techniques

in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HHE-T——FA=1+HIFE
Financial assets measured at fair value URTFEGFTEZHFEEE
At 30th June, 2012
R-ZB——FXA=+H
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BE E-FZR  E-IH B=ZR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT FHExT FHExT
Available-for-sale AHEERE -
investments:
Equity investments R&EB LM Z
listed in BRARE S
Hong Kong 220 220 - -
Financial assets at &2 -FIEZE(E
fair value through a1 A&
profit or loss: ZHBRE -
Held-for-trading RIEEER
investments listed A LM
in Hong Kong A 1,033 1,033 - -
At 30th June, 2011
MRZE——FA="TH
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
4BEE E—ER FE_ER EER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FET
Available-for-sale AR ERE -
investments:
Equity investments R&EB LT Z
listed in J& 278
Hong Kong 220 220 - -
Financial assets at ~ KA FIEZE
fair value through Efﬂféﬁ
profit or loss: ZRBERE
Held-for-trading RIEEER
investments listed Epcla
- &
in Hong Kong 11,215 11,215 - -
Held-for-trading FHIEEER
investments listed ?9£¢_”?
overseas ZRE 18,094 18,094 = =

During the years ended 30th June, 2012
and 2011, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

The carrying amounts of each of the

T ERERNMEEER

following categories of financial assets and

financial liabilities are set out as follows:

Loans and receivables measured at

cost / amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments)
Promissory note receivable from
a jointly controlled entity
Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity
Bank balances and cash

Available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value:
Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
measured at fair value:

Held-for-trading investments

Financial liabilities measured

at cost / amortised cost:
Bank overdrafts
Other payables
Secured bank borrowings
Obligation under a finance lease
Convertible notes

BB A B
ZEEREK

B 5 M E A0 EKFIR
(T BEEEM)

R — ARSI A F]
R B EUGRIR
R—E R RS R F]
JE W R IR
RITEENARS

B FlEFTEZ AT
HEMHEEE
AHERE

BATFEHEZH
AFEEEHA
BB E

BIFEE 2184

U~ B AR
FEZHBRE -
RITEX

H b & 50 H
EHEFRITEE
& MK
AR ERRE

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying

amounts of the financial assets and liabilities

as reported in the consolidated statement

of financial position approximate their fair

value.
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16,763 16,388
7,824 28,516
180,408 169,273
220 220
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- 204

3,644 5,188
75,758 79,156
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39,099 37,510
121,382 122,058
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 4. EXRERE
The objectives of the Group’s capital management NEBEAEE BN 2RER
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going HEKREEELZ . WA
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders RIEHER LR AEMFIZEE S K
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain WA RIBEERERE
an optimal capital structure, to reduce the cost of HmBERMEKRAN G RER
capital and to support the Group’s stability and ZEENER -
growth.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and NEBITH LN FHENLEER
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal BEREBUNRBRIERE B RLGE
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking BRI E 2O FeEEAR
into consideration the future capital requirements EEAKRIZEARAENRK - HREE
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the I ZEANGEE - AEEH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount AR ELTFREZIREZS
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares B o BRITETPS AN Bk (A PR R AR [0 &
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were RoRNEHE-_E——FF —_FT—
made in the objectives, policies or processes during —FXNA=1+HIEE E#EH
the years ended 30th June, 2012 and 2011. = R IR EEE o
TURNOVER AND REVENUE 5. EXBFNRKs:E
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Turnover —E 20
Gross rental income from BIEEYEREAES KA
investment properties 3,296 4,649
Other revenue Hit
Interest income FEMA
- Financial assets at fair value —RAFEZ T ARR
through profit or loss ZUEEE 376 1,013
— Others — Hh 6 23
382 1,036
Total revenue UL A 3,678 5,685
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

6. OTHER INCOME

6. HfzlA

Group
rEH
2012 2011
=F-=F —F—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Dividend income B A 95 12
Gain on disposal of financial assets at ~ HEZAFEELET AEEE
fair value through profit or loss LW EE 2 Wam - 374
Gain on disposal of other assets e A E E 2 W - 14,843
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment 2 Was 786 -
Sundry income R 2 136
883 15,365

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management identifies operating segments based
on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker, who are the
directors, for the purposes of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance. The
directors consider resort development, property
investment and investment holding are the Group’s
major operating segments. The Group’s resort
development segment includes multi-purpose
resort communities as well as sale of condo hotels,
residential units and club memberships. No revenue
has been earned by the resort development
segment which is still under development. The
property investment segment includes mainly
residential and commercial properties that are
held for capital appreciation or to earn rentals.
The investment holding segment includes holding
and trading of investments and other assets. No
operating segments have been aggregated.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

Segment revenue and results for the year ended

30th June, 2012 are presented below:

Turnover
Other revenue and income

Results
Segment results

Unallocated corporate
income

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Finance costs

Interest income on
promissory note
receivable from a
jointly controlled entity

Loss before tax
Taxation

Loss for the year

S
Hitns Rk WA

AABRRAER

FEE— R AR

NSRS
ZHMBHA

BRI ATE 1R
A

FEBE

HE_—_T—

—FXNA=1THIEF
B2 oA REEHREOT :

Resort Property Investment
development investment holding Total
ERN#E MERE RELER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERx TERx THERx TR
- 3,296 - 3,296
- 2 471 473
- 3,298 471 3,769
(29,346) 9,949 (5,140) (24,537)
792
(19,991)
(6,310)
10,931 10,931
(39,115)
(5.768)
(44,883)
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Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2012

and other segment information for the year ended

30th June, 2012 are presented below:

Assets

Liabilities

Other segment information:

Assets classified as
held for sale
Liabilities associated with
assets classified as
held for sale
Additions to property,
plant and equipment
Additions to investment
properties
Decrease in fair value of
investment properties
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss on trade
and other receivables
Release of prepaid
lease payments

JrAp—=S

——E=XNA=1TRHR2Z2H3p
BEMBBMNEE-ZT——FX
A=+tHIEFEZEMDEEE

BT
Resort Property Investment  Segment
development  investment holding total Unallocated Total
ERNER NERE REZR  2NAR ROE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TER TR
BE 257,930 251,169 2,515 511,614 31,588 543,202
af 2,702 7,426 39,773 49,901 78,768 128,669
HpHEH -
PER
FHEEE - 16,778 - 16,778 - 16,778
FHENEE
ZIRBEaE - 1,928 - 1,928 - 1,928
MENE  BE
Bk - - 1 1 4,265 4,266
MERENZ
1,789 - - 1,789 - 1,789
RENRLTE
Y 28,489 (8,378) - 20,111 - 20,111
ZITE - 288 115 403 369 72
85 REMER
TEZHEER 240 - 313 553 - 553
S EL)
BEMK - 40 - 40 - 40
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Segment revenue and results for the year ended HE-_ZE——FA=1THIHF
30th June, 2011 are presented below: B2 53 BB A K 24 15 B I R an
T~

Resort Property [nvestment
development investment holding Total
EERNER NERE RAEER Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT FAET
Turnover 2] - 4,649 - 4,649
Other revenue and income Hitz R A - 138 16,261 16,399
- 4,787 16,261 21,048

Results ES |

Segment results DEEE (53,396) 14,518 1,017 (37,861)

Unallocated corporate income RABDARA 2
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ APEARIER 9.772)
Finance costs BEKA (3,400)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAF 2 &R (6,628) (6,628)
Impairment loss on promissory ~ JE{E— R SRl

note receivable from a RAMELER

jointly controlled entity LREEE (50,143) (50,143)
Share of results of a JE{E— R LR

jointly controlled entity NTEES (27,676) (27,676)
Loss before tax RIRAIER (135,478)
Taxation BiE 1,993

Loss for the year EEER (133,485)
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Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2011
and other segment information for the year ended
30th June, 2011 are presented below:

RZE——FNA=Z1+HZDE
BERBBEREE_T—FX
A=THIEFEZHMDEEL
BT

Resort Property Investment Segment
development investment holding total Unallocated Total
ERNER NERE RERR HEBE KAE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT FAT AT
Assets BE 271,867 245,442 37,046 554,355 27,311 581,666
Liabilities =L 1,287 39,906 41,989 80,320 122,309
Other segment information:  EtH&HEH :
Additions to property, MENE - BE
plant and equipment e - 305 331 19 350
Additions to investment AN
properties 1,805 - 1,805 - 1,805
Decrease in fair value of BENELTE
investment properties R 53,005 (12,100) - 40,905 - 40,905
Depreciation of property, ME - BELRE
plant and equipment 2E - 426 868 282 1,150
Gain on disposal of HEHMERE
other assets Pl 6 - 14,843 14,843 - 14,843
Release of prepaid lease BREAEERN
payments - - 41 - 41

There was no revenue generated from inter-
segment transactions for both years. Revenue from
the property investment segment reported above
represents rental income earned from external
customers. Segment results represent profit or loss
attributable to each segment without allocation of
central administration costs, share of the results of
a jointly controlled entity, finance costs and income
tax expense. Segment assets and liabilities represent
all assets and liabilities of reportable segments
other than those that have been eliminated in
consolidation.
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Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in
Canada, Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
other than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and Panama.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical market:

Hong Kong BB
Canada mneEx
PRC A

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts
of non-current assets by geographical area in which
the assets are located:

Hong Kong BB
Canada mex
Panama E25
PRC =8
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HwEEE

AEBzEEMETBMANME
R~ &BE PEARLME (T
B TEEEE)  RERXEH
5 ((RBRAEE]) RBEEF -

MR E TS5 8 D AR E
IRE SN W R 2 DT

Turnover by
geographical market

RETSE S 2 ERE
2012 2011
—F-=F T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx THT
2,925 1,147
- 288
371 3,214
3,296 4,649

REEMAENERS D ZIERDE
EREEZHTAT

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEERAE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
235,333 231,708
- 5,600
106,900 133,600
2,397 11,143
344,630 382,051
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Non-current assets presented above exclude
financial instruments. The Group does not have
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets
and rights arising under insurance contracts.

Information about major customers
Revenue from external customers contributing

over 10% of the total revenue from the Group’s
property investment segment is as follows:

MIERBEELTBEVEL
E REBIRBERETEREAE
B BERENEMNEEKBRR
& REE Y B -

IREERER

YERE DI 2 WS h B EH
EE10% 2N E WS T ¢

2012 2011
—B--F —T—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Customer A L 2,925 1,435
Customer B B N/A 1,279
Customer C BEER 371 N/A
FINANCE COSTS = R A
Group
REE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest on convertible notes (note 39)  AJHARRZEE 7 R 8 (#17£39) 4,930 2,677
Interest expenses on bank borrowings — $R1TE 2 F 5
— wholly repayable more -~ ZRAFEHES
than five years 1,327 722
Finance charges on obligation under BB EENTEE R
a finance lease 53 1
6,310 3,400

The analysis shows the interest expenses on bank
borrowings, which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled
repayment dates as set out in the loan agreements.
The interest expenses on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted
to HK$1,327,000 (2011: HK$722,000).
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AMBTRBHNE R HET L
TFUHERBHNRITEENE
ﬁi EFERESTEERENE
RZIGEH - BITBERBEBETE
KI%%ﬁZﬁﬁMW%ﬁiﬁ
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722,000/7T) °
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

contributions

Total staff costs

Other operating expenses
Impairment loss of trade and other receivables
Loss on disposal of financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on disposal of investment properties
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 38)

Other items
Auditor's remuneration:
Current year
Underprovision in prior year
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Direct operating expenses relating to
investment properties that generated
rental income
Direct operating expenses relating to
investment properties that did not
generate rental income
Net decrease in fair values of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
Operating lease payments on premises
Release of prepaid lease payments
Write-off of property, plant and equipment

9. KRBIAIER

SImAE 81
EEME

B Je Bt 12 A
RN AET EIHER

Hitt& B>

85 R ARHE RERE
3 AT R A 2

HHEEZER
HERENEZER

HEWRBARZER (A7:238)

HttEE
ZEEN M S -

AEE
BEFERETR
ME - BERREOTE

BERELHESREY
BREMEFNEREESH

ARRBELESREZ
REVMEMEREES

AT EECABRZ
B AR ATETHL
BEmEERHEH
BRBHAENE

M B R 8
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BB ATEIRC IR TSR

Group

AEE
2012 2011
—F-=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
7,681 8,541
84 99
7,765 8,640
553 -
3,499 -
225 -
- 6,628
4,277 6,628
500 500
- 43
772 1,150
877 1,776
391 8
872 1,341
2,432 2,720
40 41
- 3
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TAXATION 10. A
Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the RN ETE——FEN T ——F
Group does not have any assessable profits arising NB=1TRHIFEE - KEEHS
from Hong Kong for the years ended 30th June EESHEHNEBE RAENE
2012 and 2011. EH AR B EEMEENER
BEAE
Taxation arising in the PRC and overseas £ B KBS a AR e AE 4 A B
jurisdictions, if applicable, are calculated at the B iEs - IRRBAERERIE
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions based MIRIT AT REBREBHH X
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices 1E o
in respect thereof.
The tax charge (credit) comprises: MIEER (Ke) B
Group
TEE
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Current tax RIE R
Overseas tax GINIE 541 -
Deferred taxation FEEFHE
Origination and reversal of TR ERENESREE
temporary differences 5,227 (1,993)
Total tax charge (credit) for the year AEEHREER (Bx)
R 5,768 (1,993)
Taxation recognised directly in other comprehensive BEEEERARREMEE K
income
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—F--F %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Origination and reversal of deferred BEFERZMEEE
tax relating to revaluation surplus REMEELERH
upon transfer of property, plant and EHHABHZIELERIE
equipment to investment properties TR ERaES ML (119) 119
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 &

Reconciliation of taxation

Loss before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
in determining taxable profit
Tax effect of income not taxable
in determining taxable profit

Differences in tax rates of
other jurisdictions
Unrecognised deductible
temporary difference
Recognition of taxable temporary
differences
Others

Tax expenses (credit) for the year

BR RIS 1R

BB BFIE
(=F——#:

g
==
l:l Ft

B

—FERA=THILEE

I E16.5%

16.5%)

7 TE B RR 0 g V| s T AT A0 AR

Fi X 2 %%
Ji):F_ﬁ n%@%/ﬁ]lﬂj
WAZ B &

=AY
=

RARRDERIE AR R Z

=8

RERA RN EREER

ERERNE R EER

Hitp

AEEHRESEH (ER)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company includes a loss of
HK$28,695,000 (2011: HK$31,069,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
and up to the date of these consolidated financial

statements (2071: HK$Nil).
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11.

BlIE 2 7T
Group
AEHE
2012 2011
—E--F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(39,115) (135,478)
(6,454) (22,354)
6,048 18,800
EEE )
(2,688) (4,554)
(1,198) 3,339
4,719 3,176
5,359 -
(18) (400)
5,768 (1,993)
ARAEBE AR E
ERNEE

AR AR RSB ANEGE
BEEEREAEARRR M B®mE
R 2 B 18 528,695,0008
JC (= & — —4F : 31,069,000
JT) °

RAFEMEERGARVBRER
BEDRKEZRE (ZF——
FAE) o
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EERESHS

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=EBM<
For the year ended 30th June, 2012, the (2T —_FARA=T
emoluments paid or payable to each of the HIEFE  BRANUES
six (2011 six) directors were as follows: ZEF——F  Nz) I

FEXNZMEemT
HungKin ~ Wong  Hung Lun Lam Ka

Sang, Kar Gee, Kai Mau, Tsan Su Wai,  Chan Lo
Raymond Mimi  Marcus Kau  Rulia Graham MingFai  Yun Tai

AL IZE ORER RER BME  MEE  RMR BER

Total
ag

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Tén THn THErn THxn TEn TEn  TEx TR TEx

(Note 1) (Note2)  (Note 1) (Note 3)  (Note 4)  (Note 4)

(1) (W) (W) (R33)  (Wiska) (i)

(Note 2)

(3k2)

(Note 5)

(F3¥5)
Year ended 30th June, 2012 HZ-%--%

AAZTRLEE
Fees £A - - - 150 150 175 83 83 641
Other emoluments Etie
Salaries and other benefits S REMERN - - 4,69 - - - - - 46%
Retirement benefit EIEREEER
scheme contributions - - 12 - - - - - 12
Total emoluments fame - - 4,708 150 150 175 83 83 5349
Year ended 30th June, 2011 HEZE——%
NACTHLEEE

Fees R - 62 - 125 125 125 - - 437
Other emoluments Ehie
Salaries and other benefits %4 REET 414 W 1307 - - - - YA
Retirement benefit scheme ~ RINETIET &3
contributions 10 - 12 - - - - - b))
Total emoluments ame 4,152 84 1319 125 125 125 = - 6130
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Note 1:  During the year ended 30th June, M1 REBEZT—ZFX

2012, in addition to the above,
the Group provided rent-free
accommodation with estimated
rateable values of approximately
HK$Nil (2011:HK$130,000) and
HK$170,000 (2011: HK$381,000),
respectively, to Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Hung”) and
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (“Mr. Marcus
Hung”).

On 14th January, 2011, Wong Kar
Gee, Mimi (“Ms. Wong") retired
as a non-executive director of the
Company. On 6th April, 2011, Mr.
Raymond Hung resigned as an
executive director of the Company.

On 12th December, 2011, Lam
Ka Wai, Graham resigned as an
independent non-executive director of
the Company.

On 13th December, 2011, Chan Ming
Fai and Lo Yun Tai were appointed as
independent non-executive directors
of the Company.

Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, on 15th August
2012, Mr. Raymond Hung was
reappointed as an executive director
and the managing director of the
Company. Ms. Ng Kit Ling was
appointed as an executive director of
the Company.
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(b)

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included
one (20711: two) director of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining
four (2011: three) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

The four (207117: three) highest paid
individuals’ remuneration falls within the
following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

During the years ended 30th June, 2012
and 2011, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals,
including directors, as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. During the
years ended 30th June, 2012 and 2011,
no directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.
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(b)

e MEAMAER
RIRARFFT &I R

£ 21,000,000/ 7T

BEMS

hTEEaHFATBERE—
HB(ZFE——F: = F)
55 HMlesBERN L
X BB HE (ZF——
F:=F) AzB&m
T~

Group

REE
2012 2011
—EB-—fF —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
1,520 1,357
49 36
1,569 1,393

mE (—F——F =%)
BEFALZHEE TS
o

Number of employees

EEHE
2012 2011
—EB-—F —ET——%F
4 3

RBEE_T——FK=F
——FEXA=+tHIHF
B AEEYTERARK
BTALT (BEES) X
ERHMIERMBEREER
ZES AR IMAREER
e 16 B SR B ok 2 (S BE B 7
B REBE_ZT——F
rE=—F——FA="H
IHFE SEEUENE
I ERE ] Bl & o
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LOSS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic loss per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company
is based on the following data:

Loss for the purposes of FrEERAREE
basic loss per share FRER A Z 18

Weighted average number of STESREREE
ordinary shares for the purposes FrERF 2 hnie 15
of basic loss per share fxin & B

For the year ended 30th June, 2012, diluted loss
per share is the same as basic loss per share as
there were no outstanding share options during the
year.

For the year ended 30th June, 2011, diluted
loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
because the exercise price of the share options
granted was higher than the average market price
of shares.
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BRERE

AEARRRERAAREEK
EAXBEROT

2012 2011
—F--F ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT
44,883 133,485
2012 2011

—E——F —ET——%F
No. of shares No. of shares
BHEE grat S e=]

837,903,401 838,874,168

BHE-_ZT——FA=1+HL*F
B SERBESEASRELRE
BAER - BARFE AW EEM
RITEEHHE AR -

BE_T——F X A=1THIL*F
B SR#EEREESRAENE
BER ARRMEFERT
HEBREZTEEASREN Z
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value
At 1st July, 2010
Additions — subsequent expenditure
Reclassification from property,

plant and equipment
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38)
Net decrease in fair values

At 30th June, 2011
Additions — subsequent expenditure

14. REYHE

AT
R=Z-TFLA—A
HiHE —

B BERRBEN SR

KB AR (72238
ATER LB

R-ZZE——FA=+H
i —1REL W

Group
REE

HK$°000
FET

437,088
1,805

4,000
(24,388)
(40,905)

377,600
1,789

Disposal HE

Net decrease in fair values

Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (note 25)

At 30th June, 2012

The fair values of the investment properties of
the Group at 30th June, 2012 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuation as at the end of the
reporting period carried out by BMI Appraisals
Limited (“BMI"”), an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers not connected with the
Group. BMI is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”) and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties at the relevant locations. The
valuation, which conforms to the HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties, was conducted on an open
market basis by the comparison approach assuming
sale with the benefit of vacant possession or by
making reference to comparable sale evidences as
available in the relevant market.
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R-ZE—=—FxA=+H

(5,600)
(20,111)

(16,778)

336,900

RZE——FXA=+H &%
EREMEZ AFEEDIBESA
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All of the Group’s property interests held under

operating leases to earn rental or for capital

appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The carrying values of investment properties held

by the Group comprise:

Held in Hong Kong:
Long-term leases

Held outside Hong Kong:

Medium-term leases
Freehold

REERA
REMD

REBAIMETRE -

FEEA
IR SEHE
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FAAEBURER BB 2N
SR TR RERA A
AR ENAFE R ENHA
BRIIARENE -

AEB/EZREMEZERE
(2ECE

2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
230,000 230,000

- 14,000

106,900 133,600
336,900 377,600




15.

Applied Development Holdings Limited & 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Year ended 30th June, 2012 &;

e BTSRRI

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost / Valuation

At 1st July, 2010

Additions

Revaluation

Reclassification to investment
properties

Write-off

At 30th June, 2011
Additions
Disposal

At 30th June, 2012

Accumulated depreciation and

impairment
At 1st July, 2010
Provided for the year
Write-off

At 30th June, 2011
Provided for the year
Disposal

At 30th June, 2012

Carrying values
At 30th June, 2012

At 30th June, 2011

AE/
R-$-BFLA-F
i

B
BHNARERANE

Ba
RZZ——%F~A=1A

His
it

RZE-—£XB=1H

RRMBERAE

R-F-ZE+A-H
ERIHE
iH#

RZZ-——& A=1A
FEIFE
e

RZE--—£XA=1H

RHE
RZE-Z#XA=1H

R=E-——%F A=1A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E_E——_HFAA=+HLFE
15. W%  BERRE
&3
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and  Leasehold and Motor
buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE &HH-%E
THRET MELEE Rt AE Baf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
3,145 12,364 1,121 11,334 27,964
- 206 125 19 350
1,444 - - - 1,444
(4,000) - - - (4,000)
- - (320) - (320)
589 12,570 926 11,353 25,438
- - 1 4,265 4,266
- - (1) (2,427) (2,428)
589 12,570 926 13,191 27,276
87 11,996 916 9,791 22,790
226 146 770 1,150
- - (317) - (317)
95 12,222 745 10,561 23,623
76 105 584 172
- - Q] (2,252) (2,253)
102 12,298 849 8,893 22,142
487 272 77 4,298 5,134
494 348 181 792 1,815
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE T —

The carrying values of land and buildings held by
the Group comprise:

—FERA=THILEE

Held in the PRC under long-term EREARE i
land use rights EAERSE

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment of the Group include an aggregate
amount of HK$3,300,000 (2071: HK$Nil) in respect
of asset held under a finance lease.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets of the Group and the Company
represent antiques held for long-term investment
purposes. In the opinion of the directors, the other
assets are worth at least their carrying value at the
end of the reporting period.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITY

Share of net assets JE(LFEE
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16.

17.

AEBFAz L METFRAEE
B

2012 2011
—E-——F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
487 494

REBYE - BELEEZER
HEREREREENFEZE
EE42{E#93,300,0008 T (= F—
—F  fE) o

HttEE

AEEEMEBEER/EFRARER
BRALLEE -EFRR R
THRARZEMEEELHA
BREEZEE-

2—%%EEHQEZE

Group

A eEE
2012 2011
—F-=F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THET
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 &;

As at 30th June, 2012, the Group had interest in
the following jointly controlled entity:

Name of jointly
controlled
entity

HEZEH DA
&

Quorum Island
(BVI) Limited
("Quorum™)

Form of
business
structures

BREREN

Corporation

BRAT]

Place of
incorporation /
operation
MR
X R

The BVI
RBRLHS

The summarised financial information in respect

of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity

which is accounted for using the equity method is

set out below:

Non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities

Income

Expenses

FRBEE

i

The financial information of a jointly controlled

entity is prepared using the same accounting

policies as those adopted by the Group.

100

- —FAASTALEE

4= —=

R-ZZBE——F,"A=+H0  &x&
B THIEREH A B A R

Proportion of
issued share
Class of capital held

shares held by the Group

FERE HEERE

=] B Z I

%

Antk

Ordinary 50
R

BREASER —BEREZEN 22

Principal
activities

TEXK

Resort and
property
development

AR K
MEER

]2 2 5 P #E A A R EL AR TE
AR -

2012 2011

—B--f —T——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER AT

83,247 82,921

378 273

(83,625) (83,194)

684 319

(507) (27,995)

HRHEHI A B IR AR S ETER
EASERMEANETBRREM

—% o
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The unrecognised share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity for the current year amounted
to HK$177,000 (2011: loss of HK$12,957,000)
and the related share of losses cumulatively up
to the end of the reporting period amounted to
HK$12,780,000 (2011: loss of HK$12,957,000).

Interlsle Holdings Limited (“Interlsle”), the joint
venture partner, failed to meet its obligation to pay
the outstanding consideration of US$10.5 million
(the "Outstanding Consideration”) in relation to its
subscription of the 50% equity interest in Quorum,
which led to the failure of Quorum to deliver its
payment of the promissory note of US$22 million
to the Group on the due date of 9th April, 2011.
Upon advice from Quorum’s lawyer, even though
the joint venture agreement provides that the
above failure would lead to a reduction in Interlsle’s
shareholding in Quorum, control does not shift
to the Group until certain actions are taken by
Interlsle to enable the control of Quorum being
taken over by the Group. Since the Group has not
obtained control over Quorum at the end of the
reporting period, the directors consider Quorum
should remain as a jointly controlled entity of the
Group.

At 30th June, 2012, included in the statement
of financial position of Quorum is a piece of
land, which has been classified as property,
plant and equipment, at a carrying amount of
HK$166,495,000 (2011: HK$165,842,000), of
which HK$83,247,000 (2011: HK$82,921,000)
relates to the Group's interest. The fair
value of the land as at 30th June, 2012,
excluding pre-development expenses of
Us$8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$62,400,000)
(2011: US$8,000,000), was approximately
HK$179,000,000 (2011: HK$205,000,000), which
has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by an independent
professional valuer.
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AEE—MEREHQRZEK
MR EAS % M 5 Bl A&177,0008
T (ZFE——4F :12,957,000,%
TEE) REFEBBEEAREH
K A12,780,0008 ¢ (—F——
4F : 12,957,000;8 T E#8) °

Interlsle Holdings Limited
([Interisle]) - Ree WEHEEE
HEITELE XN BHEERR
B 7 Quorumt50% A% # 2 K (B
# £ f10,500,0003 T ([ £ &
ERE]  BHQuorumTEE R
RR-ZZFE——FMHANBRHZ
A} 2= $£22,000,000% T ° 1R
BQuorumZERiI 2 ER - BE A
EEEH LI REBETEGE
& Hinterlsle)d 2 FEQuorum¥F
ke HiEdlgESBEBBER
£ B - H ZInterlslef RELE T 17
B {5 2 & B £ B Quorum 2 1%
e ARERSEHRAEE LR
BESQuorumZz L - EEF
R ABQuorumE Z BB IE B A&
Bz RS AR o

HE-_ZT——H%XA=+H"'#&
B 75 0 R B 2 QuorumAy i
H B8R M 18166,495,000/8 7T (=
FE——1F : 165,842,000/ ) *
H 183,247,000/ T (= &F —
— 4F 182,921,000/ ;L) A K
EENHZE - RZE—-F X
A=+H WO AFELHE
179,000,000/ 7T (= & — —
£ : 205,000,000/ 7T) © TBHE
A HARA 2% & 3 8,000,0003 7T (48
E162,400,00087T) (ZF——
4F : 8,000,000 T) » BT
BERERMMNZ B A HEAER
AT o
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Current portion RENEB )
Non-current portion EMmBIEB (D

Prepaid lease payments of the Group represent cost
paid for long-term lease land use rights in the PRC.
The cost is amortised over the leasehold period.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—FERA=THILEE

18. ENHEERE

Group

REE
2012 2011
—EB-——fF —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
40 40
1,551 1,591
1,591 1,631

AEBBENHEFRBARREM
RABRFAERALERENE
B o AR R E MR
85 °

19. AIHEERE

Group

AKE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Equity investments at fair value BAFEAE 2 EZRE

listed in Hong Kong REBLT 220 220

The fair values of the listed investments are
determined on the basis of quoted market price at
the end of the reporting period.
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

20. EAFEBUATARREZ

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MEEE
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—E-ZF —E——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix FHET
Held-for-trading investments at NAFENEFHIEEEZ
fair value wE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EEB LM BRAFES 1,033 11,215
Debt instruments listed overseas BN ETZEBTA - 18,094
1,033 29,309
The fair values of the listed investments are TR ENATFEUARREIRR
determined on the basis of quoted market price at FTISHmEEM LT -

the end of the reporting period.

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables g 3 EW

Other receivables Hi W

21. EFZREMERRIE

Group Company
TEH /N
2012 2011 2012 2011

—B--F T % Z%-=fF T —F
Note ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Deposits, prepayments
and other debtors
Legal cost recoverables
Amount due from
a related party

me  BANRRK
HAERA

Al E 2z AR E A

e —RERE S 2
A

B 5E THET FET THET FET
21(a) - - - -
4,138 2,947 1,996 862

21(b) 19,281 - 19,206 -
21(c) 107 738 = 313
23,526 3,685 21,202 1,175
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

21(a) TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group allows credit period ranging within 90
days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis
of trade receivable of HK$Nil (20771: HK$NIl) is as
follows:

Within 90 days CFNG

21(b) LEGAL COST RECOVERABLES

21(c)

As at 30th June, 2012, management estimated
that the Group and the Company would be able
to recover legal costs from Ms. Wong as a result of
the consent judgment of a High Court case.

The legal cost recoverables include an amount paid
by the Company for Mr. Raymond Hung relating
to a High Court case pursuant to the “Indemnity
Clause” as stated in Clause 168 of the Company’s
Bye-Laws. As a result of the consent judgment of
the High Court case, Mr. Raymond Hung will be
reimbursed the related legal costs on indemnity
basis from the plaintiff. As at 30th June, 2012,
management estimated that the Group and the
Company would be able to recover the legal costs
in full from Mr. Raymond Hung.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY

The amount represents amount due from Ms.
Wong, a close family member of Mr. Marcus Hung,
a director of the Company, which is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The
maximum amount outstanding of the Group and
the Company during the year were HK$738,000
(2011: HK$738,000) and HK$313,000 (2011:
HK$313,000) respectively. At the end of the
reporting period, provision of HK$553,000 (20717:
HK$Nil) had been made for non-repayment of the
balance.
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21(a) EZEWR

21(b)

21(c)

REBEGTEEBSRPZEERN
FO0ORA - AFEFEWEE 5 FEI
R(ZE——F : &|&) HEERD
MR -

2012 2011
—E——F —FT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
ARz EREER

RZE——FA=+H &8
BHETAKE RAAG S8 5HE
REEERERGNRE A AL
R RELLTWKEEEER -

&AM E AR ERABREAR
AIRIBEEARNRDE 2 A 4R
168{GRFTALRY [ BB 153N B2
EREMSNBR—SFERSE
2o - ERZSFEREN
MR EHIRGER  HEERER
ARREARBABERLESF
MWAEBERER R _T——F
NA=+H - BEREMGAEE
MARRBFRe 2B EERE
WEZERER -

W —EABE T 2 R

ZREEERTELZ L (BEK
NABEERBEHREENBES
UM KREKE) cREBE BEA
mIER RERIZEREE-
AEBERARFARFERNERS K
EE <% 5 B738,000% T
(= & — — 4 : 738,000/ 7r)
§%313,0008 T (=ZF——4 -
313,000/8C) - R EBH R -
553,000 T (= F——F -
) RREERBEBE -



22,

Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM A
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

FERBERD

Non-current portion

Following the expiration of the due date of the
promissory note receivable from a jointly controlled
entity on 9th April, 2011, management of the
Group considers that there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss on the promissory note has
incurred.

As at 30th June 2011, management expected that
the full amount of the promissory note would
be realisable in approximately four years after
30 June 2011. Consequently, impairment loss
of HK$50,143,000 measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate of 9% per annum
are recognised in profit or loss as a result of the
extended period of recovery. The same effective
interest rate will be used for discounting future
cash flows at the end of each subsequent reporting
period.

As at 30th June 2012, there was a reduction
of HK$10,931,000 in impairment loss, which is
attributable to cash flow discounting. The reduction
in impairment has been recognised as an interest
income in profit or loss using 9% per annum, the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows in previous year.

The amount is unsecured. At the end of the

reporting period, the promissory note was past due
more than one year (2071: less than one year).
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22. W —EHEES D F A

HREE

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—F--F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THET
132,388 121,457

F U — R RE S R B AR
BZBRER—_ZT——FMANH
BRI AEEEEERARER
BEBRAZBRCHLERMER
4o

RZE——F X A=1+H &8
B 2FZBENBHER
—E——FXAZ1+H®E Y
MEZEIR - Fiy - BEEX
50,143,000/% 7T LA9% /R B IR
KR EERKIRS RENIRE
HEEAEBE =R ABR A RER
FRIEERIE O iR ARk (E - FEH 12
W& EREHR - BARNER

FME2HARMBRGHEZRKES

s =
JLEE °

RZE——FA=1+H' ' BER
AR ME - SIBUREBRKLR
4>10,931,000 7T ° % ZE MR
BEEEXBLDAFHNEI%MIR -
FRRFEENECBETHERE
FLEBUA

SRR REER o RIMEHRK
HEBHAZR—F(=F——
F:PR—F) -
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 23. B —REAREFQIRZ
CONTROLLED ENTITY ;—-fﬁlﬁ
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has B TEIEW . R NEETF
no fixed repayment term. At the end of the BEHD o RIREHAKR - S8 HUR
reporting period, no provision had been made for FTEAEZRAEENEE®REYZ
non-repayment of the amount due and the carrying PR o
amount of the amount due approximates its fair
value.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, RITBEEREE
Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances RITEGF LR REASERZA
and cash held by the Group and the Company that MHASIRIT RIS M R 2 IRITET K&
bear interest at prevailing market interest rates. e e
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 25. PEAGHENEE
Group
AEH
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investment property "B 16,778 -
Liabilities associated with SERFLHENEE Y
assets classified as held for sale EEaE 1,928 -

A subsidiary of the Group entered into a provisional
sale and purchase agreement with a non-related
party for the disposal of the investment property
in the PRC, at a consideration of HK$16,778,000.
Deposits of HK$1,928,000 have been received as at
the end of the reporting period. No significant gain
or loss on disposal is expected upon the completion
of the transaction. The transaction is expected to
be completed on or before 30th September, 2012.
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REE—MBARHE—IE@E A
FVGEREEREHENUNRE
16,778,000/ JT £ # B 1) & &
ME- RMEHAR 2 RIIEZE
©1,928,000% 7T © £ X 5 FE K
% BEHRAEBENHEREK
B8 - RRHEFBHR T —=
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE T —

The fair value of the investment property stated
in the statement of financial position at 30th
June, 2012 was arrived at by reference to the
consideration of the disposal.

—FERA=THILEE

S2EHEZRE  ZREVEN
RFEIER-_T—FRA=
TR BARERF

26. OTHER PAYABLES 26. HiESRIE
Group Company
AEE ¥ NN
2012 2011 2012 2011
=F-=F T F ZB-=F —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 FET FAT FET FAET
Accrued charges and  JEfT R R
other creditors HiEBHA 3,644 4,162 523 2,033
Amount due to a P —RAEE
related party A 26(a) - 1,026 - -
3,644 5,188 523 2,033

26(a) AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY

The amount due to a related party, Mr. Raymond
Hung, a close family member of Mr. Marcus
Hung, a director of the Company, was unsecured,
interest-free and fully settled during the year.

27. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

26(a) FEAY —BAMETS 2 FKIE

RN BB TR EESRE (B
BN R EF AR ERRR
BUNREKEB) 258 i
B 2B ERNFRZBER -

27. BEHBRTEE

Current portion of bank borrowings
Non-current portion of bank
borrowings which contains
a repayment on demand clause

Group
KEE
2012 2011
—F--F ZT——fF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
mENE D RERTTE R 3,444 3,396
IERENF D IRITIEREE
HBs TIRERE
BTN MR 72,314 75,760
75,758 79,156
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Group
rEH
2012 2011
—E——F —FT——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Analysis of the amounts due based on  1ZER | ZHF IR
scheduled payment dates set out in SR EERER G
the loan agreements (ignoring the (BT IE Z KR
effect of any repayment on demand BRI TE) 1
clause) is as follows: DT -
Within one year —E R 3,444 3,396
2-5 years “ERF 14,397 14,168
Over 5 years FFEALE 57,917 61,592
On demand or within one year BRESRR s —F R 75,758 79,156

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
bank loans carried variable interest rates at Hong
Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus 1.45% (2011:
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus 1.45%) per
annum. The effective interest rates during the year
was 1.75% (2011: 0.91%) per annum. The bank
borrowings are secured by the assets of the Group
as set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The secured bank borrowings with a clause in its
terms that gives the bank a customary overriding
right of repayment on demand and an unfettered
right of terminating the facility at any time by
notice in writing to the Group at its sole discretion
are classified as current liabilities even though
the directors do not expect that the bank would
exercise its rights to demand repayment.
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REEBRBEFMNEAE1.75%
:;——fﬁ'om%) BRI
TIEFIRENEE - ASEEH
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28.

Current portion
Non-current portion

Amounts payable:

Within one year

More than one year but
less than two years

More than two years but
less than three years

Less: Future finance charges

Present value of finance
lease obligation

Less: Amount due for
settlement within
12 months

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

28. EEMRAOEE
Group
REH
2012 2011
—E-F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
mENE D 1,124 _
mENED D 1,757 -
2,881 -
Group
AEE
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BRERNSFRK BRERNSREE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B--F T F =%T-—=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT F#Ex FET
BATFHIER
—FR 1,201 - 1,124 -
il —F
BORME 1,201 - 1,162 _
B R
BLR=%F 601 - 595 _
3,003 - 2,881 -
B BRENE
=92 (122) - - _
THAEREZBRE
2,881 - 2,881 -
N A |5
N2 FER
A (1,124) =
+Z@A®’Z
FERTR 1,757 -
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

The obligation under a finance lease of the Group is
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased asset.

The lease term is three years. For the year ended
30th June, 2012, the average effective borrowing
rate was 3.26% (2071: Nil) per annum. Interest
rate was fixed at the contract date. All lease is on a
fixed repayment basis.

SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BTSRRI

—FERA=THILEE

29.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each  ELiBIXEARE(E0.01/5 7T

Authorised: VETE
At 1Tst July, 2010, 30th June, RZZE—ZTFLH—H
2011 and 30th June, 2012 —E——%RHA=TH
k=ZZ——%FXA=+H
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1st July, 2010 R-ZZE—ZFLA—H
Cancellation upon repurchase OB+ 88 2 EE 7 A 1D

of own shares

At 30th June, 2011
Cancellation upon repurchase
of own shares

At 30th June, 2012

RNZZE——FA=+H
(A [o] & i 7t $5

R-ZBE-—FxXA=1H

AEBREREREERNE
HEBEAHHEEERS -

MERR=F -HE_T—_F
AAZTALEE FHER
fEEMEXRTF3.26% (ZF—
—4F M) BENMREALHHA
- MEHEERNETERTA
ELH -

g 4

Number of
ordinary shares HK$'000
ZERYE FERT
6,000,000,000 60,000
838,888,826 8,389
(580,000) (6)
838,308,826 8,383
(535,000) (5)
837,773,826 8,378

During the year ended 30th June, 2012, the
Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange a
total of 535,000 shares (2011: 580,000 shares) of
HK$0.01 each of the Company at an aggregate
consideration of HK$60,000 (2011: HK$110,000),
all of which were cancelled during the year.

The nominal value of cancelled shares was credited
to the capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration was charged to the retained profits
of the Company.
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REE-—E——FA=+81
FE ARRBEERZER
4 5+ 3 B%0.017%8 JT 2 535,0008%
(—ZF——14 : 580,0008%) H#a
R B 560,000 JT (20114 :
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R

ZAHEENREEELRENE
BEARELOFERE REBARER
FEARRRIERE E A



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R AR MR

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
16th September, 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees, including executive
directors, or consultants of the Company and /
or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of adoption of the
Scheme (”Scheme Mandate Limit”) which was
94,108,074 shares. On 24th November, 2009, it
was resolved in the 2009 Annual General Meeting
that the Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed
to 87,321,782 shares. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual is not permitted to exceed the higher of
1% of the number of shares issued and issuable
under the Scheme or any other limit as may be
permitted under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 by
the grantee on each acceptance of grant. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
In each grant of options, the board of directors of
the Company may at their discretion to determine
the specific exercise period. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and
will be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.
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30.

IR AR E# X NI

R-ZFBT-_FAA+ARB &
N AR R R R AT 8 (Rx [ AT
g BEREEKAEREER
ROLEE - RIBEZATE - AR7A]
BExgrmMARE R, SENE
RAZEE (BREATES) &
BRERLARBARR RN 2B
Pt

BIEZTE R 2 BREMY
RzZBHEBE  THBAREMN
ZEEHARBBERITERG
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The directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the
Scheme. At 30th June, 2012 and 2011, the total
number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme was 87,321,782 shares, including options
of 44,430,000 shares that had been cancelled
during the year ended 30th June 2011, which
represented approximately 10.4% (2011:10.4%) of
the Company’s issued share capital.

The Scheme was expired on 16th September, 2012.
No further new / revised share option scheme has
been adopted since then.

During the years ended 30th June, 2012 and 2011,
no share options had been granted under the
Scheme. There were no share options outstanding
as at 30th June, 2012 and 2011.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement for the year in the Group’s net
deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

At beginning of the reporting period
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38)
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss
(Credit) charge to other

comprehensive income xR
At the end of the reporting period FEREHK
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TEANTR & B

HEWB AR (#i#38)
Bk (GTA) 1825
BiE (Ee) THFAEM
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KRAIREWMBRARIZEER
BEEVAILEARN R ZiEKE
il RZFE——F R T —
—FXNAZ=Z1+H " RIEBRE
FFEEE AR EBITIROEE B
87,321,782k - B & B2 i
44,430,0000% 2 fE R - UK
RARBETRME10.4% (=
T——14F 1 10.4%) °

ZAtEIR = —=FNA+<H
2 - BARSEE  RBE—TH
]/ BRI BB AT Bl B 8
PR o

RBEE-ZT——FRZT——F
NA=ZTHIEFEE - REREZ
BRI RIERE - N
T —_FRZF——F A=
H R ARITER A ARE

IEFERL IR

B P SR B B A %
EEHMT

Group
REE
2012 2011
—EB-—F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
251 4,269
- (2,144)
5,227 (1,993)
(119) 119
5,359 251
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Recognised deferred tax liabilities at the end of the RRERRERRELEHIEERE
reporting period represent the following: N

Group
AEHE

2012 2011

—F-=F Z—T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Fair value adjustment (Note) DNEERE (H:7) 5,359 251

Amount expected to be recovered FEHIBE+={EA

after more than 12 months BEkEzeE - 251
Note: The balance as at 30th June, 2012 represented izt : R=ZZT—=—F X A=+H  Z&
deferred tax on the fair value adjustment arising HHEEESHEARBELENMESL
from assets classified as held for sale. RIRIERIA ©
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from RERELEHBREERKE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
—F-=F %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Deductible temporary differences AR SR =R 60,357 31,757
Tax losses M EE 225,570 212,328
At the end of the reporting period  RIREHIK 285,927 244,085
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The deductible temporary differences of
HK$60,357,000 (20711: HK$31,757,000) represent
deficit on revaluation of overseas investment
properties. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had unused tax losses of HK$225,570,000
(2011: HK$212,328,000) available for offset against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax assets in
respect of these items have been recognised due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30th June, 2012, the
Group entered into a finance lease arrangement
in respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the lease of
HK$3,429,000 (2011: HK$Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises which fall due as follows:

—FA

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

E_EERF

32.

33.

(BREREME)
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a] 3% 0 8 B 1 = 260,357,000
BT (ZF——4 31,757,000
o) RREMBIMEEVMER
RFE -RWEBPKR X&EEEH
K B) A B IE B 18225,570,00058
T (= FE — — 4 : 212,328,000
JEIT) B R 8 R PR FEER B 2
M o B A AT TR AR R 2R ) OE
o ELIBEREERERRLEE
EFEAELERIE - HEBEA
PR HAAEEE -

FEHFREXRS

NEE-—ZET——FXA=+HI
FE AEEREERBHRE
B A3,429,0008 7T (ZF——
F ) 2YE - BEKREER
VRERELHE -

REHQNEIE
FEEMBEEA
RBEHR  AEERHEEDE

CRMHHRLRNAZ N K
REERSWT -

Group

REE
2012 2011
—F--F Z—FT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TET
1,063 2,392
= 880
1,063 3,272
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its offices and directors’
accommodations. The lease terms range from 6
months to 2 years (2011: 2 to 5 years). Rentals are
fixed over the lease period and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for future minimum
lease payments, which represent rentals receivable
by the Group for its investment properties, under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

—FR

Within one year

The properties held have committed tenants with
rental fixed for term within 1 year (2071: 1 year).
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—FERA=THILEE

34.

ReHEHSREARERNZE
THAENEEEBERX - HH
BANEREME (ZF——4F:
HERF) e BOHREA
B I L 3k AT N FE L&
BE o

REMORH
AEEBHAA
RBEHR - AREREREY

EZ RIS TIREN A G HE
SHAOZRERSWARAT

Group

rEE
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET
343 346

BEMHEEzHRADE (XM
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of investment
properties and property,
plant and equipment contracted
for but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements

— the Group
— share of a jointly controlled entity

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

35.

EROERELES

MsHmAE G
BEME - BE

R BAESE

— R&E

— EE— R EESI R

36.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

provided the following security for the banking

facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Company

as set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(a) Pledge of investment properties of the Group
with a carrying amount of HK$230,000,000

(2011: HK$230,000,000),

(b) All monies earned by the above pledged

investment properties of the Group. During
the year, rental income of HK$2,925,000
was generated from these investment

properties (2011: HK$1,147,000),

116

BEREE
Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B-=-F ZFT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
19,203 19,727
31,288 31,288
50,491 51,015
EEIEH
RB|EBR  NEERERTA
SBEZz—WBARZIRITEER
B FERGEeBHRERNTE
27 - ZFFIBT

() ERAZREVEZEREE
/230,000,000 T (=&
— — 4F 1 230,000,000/%

L)

(b) AEBHZERZIZEY
¥R BYRAYE
EH RAFERN ZE
EYMEREURALTEA
2,925,000 (= F——
F 1,147,000/ 7T)
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(c) Property insurance on the pledged
investment properties executed by the
Group in favour of the bank. At the end of
the reporting period, the property insurance
coverage was amounting to HK$15,840,000
(2011: HK$9,350,000); and

(d) Unconditional and irrevocable corporate
guarantee given by the Company in respect
of all amounts owing by the subsidiary to
the bank under the facility.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions / information
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties:

(a) Transaction

The Group earned rental income of
approximately HK$2,925,000 (2071:
HK$1,435,000) from Ms. Wong, a close
family member of the Chairman, Mr. Marcus
Hung, of the Company during the year
ended 30th June, 2012.

The Group paid rental expenses of
approximately HK$759,000 (2077:
HK$166,000) for accommodation to Mr.
Raymond Hung, a close family member of
the Chairman, Mr. Marcus Hung, of the
Company for the year ended 30th June,
2012 (2011: for the period from 6th April,
2011 to 30th June, 2011).

The Group had paid consultancy fee of
approximately HK$2,010,000 (2071:
HK$370,000) to Mr. Raymond Hung, a close
family member of the Chairman, Mr. Marcus
Hung, of the Company for the year ended
30th June, 2012 (2011: for the period from
6th April, 2011 to 30th June, 2011).
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—FERA=THILEE
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(b) Remuneration to key management (b) FEEBAEME
personnel
The remuneration of members of key M TG E IR ERM
management, other than directors as HI2BEBECEEI R
disclosed in note 12 to these consolidated FRZFTEEEAEMS
financial statements was as follows: AN
Group
AEE
2012 2011
—EB-—fF —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaET FET
Salaries and other benefits e MEAmER 772 890
Retirement benefit RIREFIFH BN
scheme contributions 12 12
784 902
The remuneration of directors and other ARelzFMNEEEER
key management personnel is determined FEALTZRBERTS
by the remuneration committee of the BRmMETESEREME
Company having regard to the performance EEEABZME -

of individuals and market trends.

The above transactions do not fall under the PR GTBRETHREEET
definition of connected transactions or continuing WEER HHIFERERS -

connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Disposal during the year ended 30th June, 2011

On 9th March, 2011, the Company disposed of the

entire issued share capital of Applied Electronics
Limited (“AEL") and its subsidiary with a total

consideration of Renminbi 15 million.

The carrying values of the identifiable assets and

liabilities disposed of as at the date of disposal

were as follows:

Net assets disposed of:
Investment property

Release of translation reserve

Release of deferred tax liabilities
(note 31)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Consideration, net of direct costs

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow arising from
disposal of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration received

38.
FEEHE
BB
FRINEE X 1S
FRRIEER B E
(H1a£31)
HEWB AT ERE

KRB - MEREERA

XAAR:

Be

HEHE A F

RBE-Z-——FAA=1+HL
FEZHE

E-ZT——F=ANB  AAF
HEENEFARLAR ([EHE
F) REMBARNEZEE 81T
A ERERAR15,000,000
T o

AHEAEERBENERRESSE
HEBHNT -

HERBQBAFRERA

MEE :
BREURESRE

119

Group
rEE
2012 2011
—F--F %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER THET
- 24,388
- 24
- (2,144)
- (6,628)
- 15,640
= 15,640
= 15,640
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39.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10th December, 2010, the Group issued
8% convertible notes in the aggregate principle
amount of HK$41,760,000. The noteholders
may convert the whole or any part, in minimum
amount of HK$250,000 or integral multiples, of
the convertible notes into share at conversion
price of HK$0.24, subject to adjustments, with
the term of 3 years from 10th December, 2010.
The Company has no intention to exercise its
rights to early redeem the whole or any part of
the convertible notes until the maturity date even
though the Company has the right at its sole
and absolute discretion at any time after 1 year
from 10th December, 2010 to redeem the whole
or any principle amount, in minimum amount
of HK$250,000 or integral multiples, of the
convertible notes.

The fair value of the liability component and the
equity conversion component were determined at
issuance of the convertible notes. The fair value
of the liability component was calculated using an
annual market interest rate of 12.2%. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion component, has been included in the
convertible notes reserve.
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The convertible notes recognised at the end of the

reporting period are calculated as follows:

Liability component
At beginning of the reporting period

Nominal value of convertible
notes issued

Issue costs apportioned to liability
component

Equity component at the issue date

At the issue date

Interest expenses (note 8)
Interest paid / payable

At the end of the reporting period

Equity component
At beginning of the reporting period
Convertible notes issued
Issue costs apportioned to
equity component

At end of the reporting period

8EHD
£ 5 & H1)

RBEMRAIBEERAE T A
L

Group and Company

ERTABRERZ@E

BITRADBENRER

RETE MRS H D

NEEITH

FMERX (B:F8)
XARE '

;| E R

HEEED
S H
AR R BT

i)

BITRAD BRI S D

3 & HR
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AERERAAT

2012 2011
—F-=F Z—T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx THT
37,510 -
- 41,760
- (1,108)
- (3,962)

- 36,690

4,930 2,677
(3.341) (1,857)
39,099 37,510
3,846 -

- 3,962

- (116)

3,846 3,846
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. AQTBRBHRRE
THE COMPANY

2012 2011
—E——fF —ET——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P FET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 41 392,591 399,851
Other assets Hi&E 16 1,045 1,045
393,636 400,896
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b fE U 318 21 21,202 1,175
Bank balances and cash RITEGFEMR S 24 2,790 21,077
23,992 22,252
Current liabilities REBAE
Bank overdrafts RITBEY - 204
Other payables H b fEA FUE 26 523 2,033
Amount due to a subsidiary ER—REREARZ
g 41 228,503 205,143
229,026 207,380
Net current liabilities ERBEE (205,034) (185,128)
Total assets less current MEERRBAR
liabilities 188,602 215,768
Capital and reserves BEARNHE
Share capital A& Zx 29 8,378 8,383
Share premium and reserves i wEBREES 40(a) 141,125 169,875
TOTAL EQUITY ERER 149,503 178,258
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible notes AR E R 39 39,099 37,510
188,602 215,768

122



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NP E g

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THILFE

Note: BT -
(a) Share premium and reserves (a) RO BERFEES
Company
LA
Share Capital Convertible
Share options  redemption Capital notes  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

TERR
ROEE BRERG AFEDEE ARG BRE  ZRER |
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKE000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TAL TERL TEL TERL TERL TEr  TEn

At st July, 2010 HZ5-55tf-A 445 5332 11,920 204,610 - (25,105 197,202
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (31,0090 (31,069)
Transactions with equity BREEAZRS

holders
Repurchase of own shares EER A - - 6 - - (10) (104)
Issue of convertible notes EATAREE - - - - 3,846 - 3,846
Transfer to retained profits on ~ E&IRIEZ5F8 /B

cancellation / forfeiture EYEREET

of share options - (5332) - - - 5,332 -

Total transactions with BREEARGZHE

equity holders - (5332) 6 - 3,846 5122 3,742
At 30th June, 2011 R_E——f%
AR=TH 445 - 11,926 204,610 3,846 (50,952) 169,875
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (28,695 (28,699)
Transactions with equity BREEAZRS
holders
Repurchase of own shares EER (A - - 5 - - (60) (55)

Total transactions with BRBEEARAZAE
equity holders - - 5 - - (60) (55)

At 30th June, 2012 RZ%-
B 445 - 11,931 204,610 3,846 (79,707) 141,125
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 H & —

The capital reserve of the Company represents
contributed surplus arising from the cancellation
of share premium account of the Company
pursuant to a special resolution passed by
the Company on 22nd February, 1999. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

Subject to the conditions mentioned in the
foregoing paragraph, the Company had the
following reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at the end of the reporting period:

NG
28

Capital reserve
Accumulated losses
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BRRE-NAN—FR8E (&
&3] BHERAIES K TR

R EWARHBELETING
R AARRBNEE IR AT
B ZNBRERMETOIK

AR BHEMEHZNA TR
BEEBEAEERNZA
&k

ARREEZAHREE
BEE D REAERE B
TR R B An s (B 2 48
e

ERa LBRAIIZIEHET - AR
AIRIEMRAHYIRTREZ
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2012 2011
—E-—-F =5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET

204,610 204,610
(79,707) (50,952)
124,903 153,658
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41. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 41. B A BIRELR
Company
AN

2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Unlisted shares, at cost FELET ARG « BERA 77,747 77,747
Amount due from subsidiaries JE U BT BB A &) 2 308 396,444 387,070
474,191 464,817
Accumulated impairment losses 2t RERE (81,600) (64,966)
392,591 399,851
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS—REM B A R 2 RIB 228,503 205,143
The amounts due from / to subsidiaries are SmEAasEIEE . fB NERT
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed BEH . fEIREHIK  BEEJE

repayment term. At the end of the reporting W /e R AFE -

period, the carrying amounts of the amounts due
approximate their fair values.
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30th FTEMBATNRZ-ZZE—Z—FNA=1H
June, 2012 are as follows: ZEBWR

Proportion of

Place of Nominal value issued share
incorporation or of issued and capital / registered
establishment / paid up share capital / capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
WEARAHR R A BRARMEREK/ ALRBEERTRE/ K
BE/BEnY AMEXEE TEmE AL

Directly  Indirectly
Bk itk

Applied Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BE EiBR1,000%7T RAER
Applied Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%  Property, plant and
Properties Limited &t LiBIR500,000/8 T equipment holding

RBME  BELRE

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$574,630,911 100% - Investment holding

ENREZRBERDA B LiAR574,630,9118 T BEEK

AppliedLand Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Property, plant and

ENEIRERAERAT E LRR2AT equipment holding
and investment
holding

FEME  BERRER

REER

Applied Mission Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Property, plant and

B LAk 10,000/8 7T equipment holding

RENE  BELR

Applied Secretaries Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Providing administrative
Limited Bt LTak2ET and secretarial services
RETHRMERS
Applied Toys Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%  Property, plant and
B Ll equipment holding

BENE  HELR
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Place of
incorporation or
establishment /

Nominal value
of issued and
paid up share capital /

Proportion of
issued share

capital / registered

capital held

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
WEAREHR ML BRARMERE/ ARAABHERTRE TEEHK
E VS EE HEMEXEE EME AL
Directly  Indirectly
B itk
Beachside Investments Limited BVI/ Canada Ordinary US$1 - 100%  Property, plant and
EBREZS/ LERIET equipment holding
JIIEYN BEDE  BERRE
Data Pen Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - Property, plant and
BERETERRAR BE LER2ET equipment holding
RENZ  WHERRE
Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property holding
Company Limited (Note) HE HK$10,000,000 HEME
BEBSRBEE ORI BRAE FEEZ10,000,0007% 7T
Playa Grande Development Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100%  Resort and property
Holdings Inc. B25 L@R200ET development
ERNEMEER
Playa Grande Hot Spring Panama Ordinary US$200 - 100%  Resort and property
Development Holdings, Inc. Bes EBAR200E T development
ERNRDEER
Severn Villa Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$7,545,000 - 100%  Property holding
EE HiBiR7,545,0008 7T REDE
Note: Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited Mizk : BB ZRIBEAZE ORI BRA

RRERBKIIZZENEHESR
X -

is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established
in the PRC.

RAEEFRIAFEE A
A BB A R A ] 1 R B
BZEBES

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

FIIMBARAEER/E AL
BEEXREREENABEIE
FEZRA - BERR - JILA
BEMMEARZHBRERRE
BRITE -

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results of the year or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of all
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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42,

43.

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE—T——FA=1THItFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 42. EBRIREFEE

With effect from 1st December, 2000, the Group —EEEFEF+ A B K
has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme EHED AMEEMEEREERM
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees. ABEIENESTE ([RESET
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Z||) o caFE L T2 IR o I
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the NFEETEEHA R AFES
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The RPN 2B EI 2 EE
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from TDERERZEESHE BB
those of the Group in funds under the control of SZIEANETBESES - RBiER
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF EeEtEZHRA - BEEREHES
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each AR T 2 kR A e E S st
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme 2tk REEBRGESEE 2
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation M—STAREAZELERTEZ
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to I MmO E HER A BE
make the required contributions under the scheme. PR E FE 7 = o

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the

contributions payable in future years.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme RIESETE 2 ERKEN K AD R
charged to profit or loss, as set out in note 9 to FEWIRING I 5 RA G E
these consolidated financial statements, represents BF fS R R B 59 » Bl A& E LA
contributions payable to the fund by the Group at EetEFAEEZHERRES
rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme. SRR o

LITIGATIONS 43. Rk

(a) High Court Miscellaneous Proceedings
No. 243 and 522/2011

During January and February, 2011, Ms.
Wong, a former non-executive director
of the Company retired on 14th January,
2011, commenced actions to bring the
Company and a subsidiary of the Company
as intervening parties to the matrimonial
proceedings between Ms. Wong and Mr.
Raymond Hung, the former managing
director of the Company resigned on 6th
April, 2011.
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Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE T —

On 7th July, 2011, Ms. Wong lodged a
statement of claim to the High Court of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “High Court”) against the Company and
the subsidiary for claiming a declaration that
certain investment properties, which have
been included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, are actually held by
the subsidiary as a trustee for Ms. Wong
and an order for the taking of accounts or
quantification of equitable compensation
amongst certain involved parties (the
“Claims”).

On 5th August, 2011, the Company and the
subsidiary filed defence and counterclaims
against Ms. Wong for vacant possession
of those investment properties and unpaid
licence fees for remaining at the investment
properties until the recovery of possession of
the investment properties by the Company
and the subsidiary (the “Counterclaims”).

On 4th May, 2012, Ms. Wong conceded on
the Claims against the Group and also on
the Counterclaims against her. Accordingly,
the High Court made the orders and
judgement that the Claims were dismissed
with costs payable by Ms. Wong to the
Group on an indemnity basis. A declaration
that the investment properties belonged to
the Group was also granted. Besides, Ms.
Wong was ordered to deliver up vacant
possession of the investment properties
and pay mesne profits for her period of
occupation.

In June, 2012, Ms, Wong returned the

possession of the investment properties to
the Group.
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NAIFEZREREYE
EUEAFAREILZLE
YA ARFRARF
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R=E ([BR]) -

E-ZF——%/\AAAB"
ARABRMBARRER
TERRRENEEZEN
AXNBEFAERER
hREMRRE BEEAX
NCI R =INCIRVE RS 32
SR EMENRERE (R
=ED -

E-_E——-—FHRAM@A
FRETHREHAEENRA
REREHMHOREKRE A
I mEEREL B R
FIABREZERER - T+
FRBEEESNBREE
BERATASE - BB
RAEBERREMENZ
A ETEL Ritz
Gh TH WS RIEZ
EEREWME  WFEIZN
RAG R B B 09 P 5
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(b)

Year ended 30th June, 2012 HE —Z—

The Group is in the process of taking the
appropriate steps to recover the legal costs
of the Group in respect of the Claims and
the Counterclaims from Ms. Wong which has
been recorded as the legal cost recoverables
as set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

High Court Action No. 424/2011

Ms. Wong originally commenced the claim
for various arrears of salaries and other
allowances, non-executive director’s fee and
reimbursements in respect of the investment
properties in the Labour Tribunal against the
Company. After a preliminary hearing, the
Labour Tribunal transferred the claim to the
High Court in February 2011 for a total sum
of the claim approximately HK$3.5 million.

On 31st May, 2011, Ms. Wong lodged a
statement of claim to the High Court against
the Company for an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$1.5 million and the
related interest and costs.

On 21st August, 2012, Ms. Wong’s lawyer
took out a summons application for leave to
amend the Statement of Claim in which the
claim amount was adjusted to approximately
HK$3 million with further interest and
related cost to be charged.

The directors consider that the claim from
Ms. Wong is without merit and have been
advised by the Group’s lawyers that the
Group holds strong positions in this claim
and therefore no provision for the claims
was considered in the consolidated financial
statements.
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AEBEERBGEETE -
MEZRLKEBERERRK
RERAIMRZERE
A YR REMEREE
B mARM 217 Y E 2z
EEBERT -

BEERTE AR
424/2011

FRETEVABRESE
R H e R E AR,
FHRITEZNME ERAE
BEBIEHARARAHEK
EMENTIERZEER
HE KBYHEM
R20114528 B EHFH
BRENZBRRERFE
bt HRERLSBOA
3,500,000/ 7T °

2011958318 £ &
TrRSEEREAEER
HEHRRIME LB SR
/#1,500,0007%8 7T K A6 8 7
BRERAZRE -

fE201298A21H - £ &
THRMABERFBEN
RRFEAENEE ST
;49 7/53,000,0008 7T © &
HERRZMEREHEER -

BEERB EREIHERER
BREEMAKE MA - &
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2 RAWLEERERE
BF 75 ¥R 3R B 2% B R B
e



Applied Development Holdings Limited % 2% & MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2012 F 5

RESULTS

Continuing operations
Turnover

Profit (Loss) before tax
Tax credit (charge)

Profit (Loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year
from discontinued operations

Profit (Loss) for the year

Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Financial Summary

BREEXY
EXE

BB (BR)
REER(XH)

1 4T AL 2

EREMN (B1])

BRIEXH
BERLEXBFER
BE

FRET (B1R)

iEART]
BREREEA

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

ARARERAA
Fefb s

B E

ES

Year ended 30th June,
BERAZTHLEE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—ETN\F  ZETNF ZT-TF E——% CZB-Zf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET THET THER TR
5,876 5,058 4,847 4,649 3,296
17,472 (11,810) 51,868 (135,478) (39,115)
432 - (4,295) 1,993 (5,768)
17,904 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485) (44,883)
(81) - - - -
17,823 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485) (44,883)
17,823 (11,810) 47,573 (133,485) (44,883)
EERERE

At 30th June,

RAA=+AH
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“FEN\FE FENF EF-%F —T—% CZ¥-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET THET TER TER
592,197 597,480 667,725 581,666 543,202
(44,958) (62,733) (79,980) (122,309) (128,669)
547,239 534,747 587,745 459,357 414,533
547,239 534,747 587,745 459,357 414,533
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Particulars of investment properties held by the Group
(including assets classified as held for sale) at 30th June,

2012 are as follows:

Name/location
=L
Hong Kong

Flat A on 1st Floor,

Flat B on 1st Floor, 2nd Floor,
3rd Floor, the roof and carpark
1,2, 3, 4,5 and 7 Severn Villa,
3 Severn Road, The Peak,

Hong Kong

The People’s Republic of China
(excluding Hong Kong)

Part of Level 1 &
whole floor of Level 2,

No. 42, Zhan Qian Road,

Zi Pian B Qu,
Guangdong Province

58

aE

1L TE B D38 357
MEERIZE 1A -
14 - 21 - 3EBE -

FakE=E[1-23-

4~ 5K 758

REARAENR
(TEEES)
BRA
E#mBI&
UHATBE 4257

—BHHR-BEE

Particulars of properties held for development (as
investment properties) by the Group at 30th June, 2012

are as follows:

Name/location

28/
Panama

Lots 1807, 4920, 4921, 4923,
4924, 4935, 4936, 4942,
4943, 4944, 4945, 6921,
20435, 33248, 35039,
41583, 41619 together with
all beach front property
known as Playa Grande in
Boca Chica, District of
San Lorenzo, Province
of Chiriqui, Panama

Type of properties:

Lease
expiry Type

B
ERER B2

Be5

Freehold RIC
KAERE

R - residential
C - commercial

132

AEER

—E——HFXNA=TEEEZ

BRENEBRIBRFTHENEEFE
ol

Lease expiry

HBAE W F 0

2070

—E+EF

2042

—EO—4F

Effective

Type % held
BEREE

it BoLE
R 100

C 100

AEBR -_ZE——FRNA=THEER
‘R (KREREME) 2MEFBRIIW

™

Gross
site area
Bt
HiE

53.3 million
Sq. ft
53,300,000
FAR

mERL -

Effective Stage of Anticipated
% held  completion completion
BEREE
BAl BIRE FHAT
100 Under N/A
development TER
ERT
R—EE
C-#A
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ApPPLED DEVELOPMENT HoOLDINGS LTD.
BEHREEEBERAT




	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
	Directors’ Report
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Financial Summary
	Particulars of Major Properties
	Back Cover

